
PART ONE 

GOODERHAM & WORTS MILL AND DISTILLERY, TORONTO 

A. Early Maps and Plans 

While a large number of maps drawn between 1788 and the. 
present have depicted Toronto harbour, only a few have 
included specific or unique information on the G&W site 
and its immediate environs. The more important of these 
are listed below. 

1. Alexander Aitken, Plan of the Harbour of Toronto 
with a proposed Town and Settlement, 1788. At the 
eastern end of the harbour is a 'Grass Bank 20 
feet high.' The water offshore from the site is no 
more than 1-1% feet deep. (NAC, NMC 0022816; see 
detail illustrated on p. 139) 

2. Joseph Bouchette, Plan of Toronto Harbour with the 
rocks, shoals and soundings thereof . . . 15 Nov. 
1792. A similar map, also by Bouchette, is found 
in the National Archives as NMC 4436. Both plans 
locate an Indian hut in the area of the site. 
(NAC, NMC 0043214; see detail illustrated on p. 
141) 

3. Samuel S. Wilmot, A Plan Showing the Survey of the 
land Reserved . . . East end of the Town of York 
&c., Feb. 25, 1811. This shows the creeks west of 
the Don's mouth and vegetation in the area. For 
example, southeast of the site is a "Natural 
Meadow which may be Mowed." Also given are the 
compass bearings of the allowance for the "Road 
from York to the [Gibraltar Point] Light House" 
along the shore in front of the site. (OMNR, micro 
390, H-26) 

4. George Williams, R.M.S.D., Sketch of the Ground . . . [at] York, Upper Canada, [November] 1813. A 
brickyard is shown in the vicinity of the site and 
a 'Merchants Ship Yard' on the shore in front. 
(NAC, NMC 22819; see detail illustrated on p. 143) 

5. George Williams, R.M.S., Plan of the Town and 
Harbour of York, 27 July 1814. During the American 
invasion of York in April 1813 both Fort York and 
the Parliament Buildings at Berkeley and Front 
Streets were burned. The walls of the latter 
structures (marked 'u' and 'r'), which had been 
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left standing, were reroofed as temporary 
barracks. In the area of the site this map shows a 
Bake House (marked Is') to supply the soldiers 
with bread. (NAC, NMC 0021771; see detail 
illustrated on p. 145) 

6. James G. Chewett, Plan showing the Survey of part 
of the Park east of the Town of York into % Acres 
Lots . . ., June 21, 1830. The area south of King 
Street between Parliament Street and the Don is 
shown in rich detail, including things predating 
the survey such as fences, paths, buildings and 
brickyards. Also noted are the names of some early 
grantees. (OMNR, micro 394, file H-26; see detail 
illustrated on p. 147) 

7. William Hawkins, Plan of building lots situate at 
the east end of Toronto, Township of York, 11 May 
1835. An inset of the properties abutting Trinity 
Street south of Mill provides compass bearings for 
the street-lines as well as lot-dimensions. Also 
shown are the windmill and two buildings facing 
Mill Street. One at the southeast corner is 
identified as a log house; that at the southwest 
corner may be the home of William Gooderham. 
(OMNR, micro 347, H-24; see detail illustrated on 
p. 149) 

8. James Cane, Topographical Plan of the City and 
Liberties of Toronto in the Province of Canada, 
1842. Engraved and printed by Sherman & Smith, 
N.Y. Scale seven chains to one inch. (City of 
Toronto Archives) 

9. John G. Howard, Chart of the North Shore of 
Toronto Harbour and Plan of the Wharves and 
Storehouses &c. &c., 1846. Shown are soundings out 
into the harbour along the Windmill Line and in a 
straight line off the end of Gooderham's Wharf. 
(OMNR, micro 410, H-24) 

10. Charles Unwin, Registered Plan 108, filed 25 
January 1855. Depicts the Toronto Hospital 
Property, formerly the Government Park. Based on 
original plans in possession of the Trustees of 
the Toronto Hospital in 1855. Covers area between 
Parliament Street and the Don River south of 
Carlton Street. (Toronto Land Registry, 20 Dundas 
St. West, Toronto, 2nd floor) 
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11. William Kingsford, Plan of the proposed location 
of the right of way for the Grand Trunk Railway in 
front of the City of Toronto, 13 Nov. 1855 (OA, RG 
22, Acc. 14065, GTR Roll 38; see detail 
illustrated on p. 151) 

12. W.S. and H.C. Boulton, Map of the City of Toronto, 
[1858], Lithographed and Published by Jno. Ellis, 
8 King Street. [Toronto]. Scale 1 inch to 100 
feet. (MTRL, Baldwin Room) 

13. Charles E. Goad, Insurance Plan of the City of 
Toronto, 1880, vol. 1, plate 11 (MTRL, Baldwin 
Room) 

14. -------- . Atlas of the City of Toronto and 
Vicinity, Mar. 1890, Second Edition, plate 29. 
(MTRL, Baldwin Room) 

15. -------- . Atlas of the City of Toronto, 1910. 
Third edition. plate 29 (MTRL, Baldwin Room) 

15.  -------- . Insurance Plan of the City of Toronto, 
Mar. 1909, rev. May 1917, vol 1, plates 10-11 
(NAC, C-13996) 

B. Site Plans 

1. T.B. Tate, civil engineer, Three plans of parts of 
Ogdensburgh, NY, 1857. Scale 100 feet to one inch. 
Ink on linen. Shows lots owned by James Greenwood 
and William P. Howland (G&W On-site) 

2. A.E. Williamson, P.L. Surveyor, Plan of property 
belonging to Wm Gooderham, Esq., Toronto, c. 1870. 
Scale 60 links equals 1 inch. Ink on paper. (G&W 
On-site) 

3. Unwin, Browne & Sankey, P.L. Surveyors, A site 
plan of Messrs. Gooderham & Worts Distillery, 
8 Nov. 1882. Scale 30 ft. equals one inch. 
Photocopy. Attached to agreement to incoporate 
Gooderham & Worts dated 1 Aug. 1882 between George 
Gooderham and the trustees and beneficiaries under 
the will of the late James Gooderham Worts. (G&W 
On-site; also in HW Legal-Secretarial and HW 
Archives, Boxes 11, 12) 
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4. [Unwin, Browne & Sankey], A site plan of Messrs. 
Gooderham & Worts Distillery showing buildings, c. 
1882. Scale 30 ft. equals one inch. Ink on linen. 
This unsigned and undated plan is identical to 
that described in the preceding entry, including 
the designation of buildings by letters referred 
to in the agreement of 1 Aug. 1882. (G&W On-site) 

5. Unwin, Browne & Sankey, Plan of subdivision of the 
Clark Estate, pt. lot 13, broken front concession, 
York, 9 Feb. 1883. The area was bounded by Queen 
Street (then called Kingston Rd.), McGee Street 
and Eastern Avenue. (G&W On-site) 

6. Kivas Tully, Cut from Don Channel to marsh, 11 
Jun. 1883. Scale [1:3 6001. Watercolour on 
blueprint. Plan of waterfront south of King Street 
between Parliament and D'Arcy streets, showing 
course of Don River and proposed cut to 
Ashbridge's Bay. (THCA, PD 2/1/2967) 

7. Plan shewing proposed diversion of Don River and 
enlargement of Keating's Channel, [188?]. Scale 
[1:2 4001. Ink and watercolour on linen. (THCA, PD 
2/1/2949) 

8. Unwin, Browne & Sankey, P.L. Surveyors, Plan of 
property of Gooderham & Worts Ltd. on Trinity and 
Mill Streets and water lots in front of same in 
the City of Toronto, 16 Sept. 1884. Scale 40 ft. 
equals 1 inch. Ink on linen. (G&W On-site) 

9. Plan of Distillery, Messrs. Gooderham & Worts 
Ltd., Toronto, Ont., c. 1890. Scale 50 feet to the 
inch. Lithographed by Rolph, Smith & Co. Paper 
with applied wash. With insets of the cattle byres 
and cooperage. (G&W On-site, three copies; a photo 
is held by THCA as PC 15/3/4) 

10. Grand Trunk Railway, plan of Don Yard, 1892, Scale 
40 ft. to an inch. Shows the slop pipeline to the 
cattle byres on the east side of the Don, which 
was carried over the river suspended below a GTR 
bridge. (NAC, NMC, RG 30M, 90137, items 5, NMC 
141827-4 and NMC 141827-5) 

11. Unwin, Browne, Murphy & Esten, Plan of part of lot 
11, Con. One and B.F. Con., c.1900. Area shown is 
from Ashbridge's Bay north to Queen Street between 
Caroline Avenue and Leslie Street. (G&W On-site) 
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Plan showing buildings, c. 1895-1900 (G&W On-site) 

Plan showing the feedlot at the mouth of the Don, 
c. 1895-1900 (G&W On-site; two copies) 

Unwin, Murphy & Esten, [1902], Plan of lands 
belonging to Gooderham & Worts to be occupied by 
General Distilling Co., two nearly identical 
copies, one dated 4 Nov. 1902 (G&W On-site) 

Unwin, Murphy & Esten, two copies of Plan of lots 
14 and 15, Broken Front Concession, Toronto, and 
marsh in front, 21 Jul. 1903. Scale 60 ft. equals 
one inch. Ink on linen with wash. Showing the 
layout of the cattle byres and feedlot south of 
Eastern Avenue. (G&W On-site) 

Plan of proposed diversion of Don Channel, [190?]. 
Blueprint. Scale [1:600]. Plan of proposed channel 
south of the railway bridge, through property used 
by Gooderham & Worts for cattle byres, to connect 
with Keating Channel. (THCA, Dwg. PD 2/1/10742) 

Land as patented around mouth of Don River, 
[1912?]. Scale [1:2 4001. Ink on linen with three 
diazo prints. Shows property ownership between 
Parliament Street and Don River, south from Mill 
Street to Keating Channel; location of G&W cattle 
byres and storage buildings; shoreline as of June 
1912; and cribbing along north side of old Don 
Channel as indicated on survey by Charles Unwin 
dated 16 July 1903. (THCA, File C-6-1, A-2; with 
deed 26 Dec. 1911 transferring City's waterfront 
properties to Toronto Harbour Commissioners) 

W.A. and W.H. Browne, Plan showing water lots, 
21 May 1914. Scale 50 ft. to an inch. Ink on 
linen. (G&W On-site) 

Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Plan showing old 
Don Channel between Parliament and Cherry Sts. 
being waterlot applied for, 26 May 1914. Scale 
[1:1 2001. Ink on linen. (THCA, File E-5-6, 
Drawing 4144) 

Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Plan to accompany 
proposition to Gooderham & Worts, re: the opening 
up of Saulter Street, 19 Jan. 1917. Scale 
[1:1200]. Photocopy. (THCA, File F-3-6, Dwg. 3807) 
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21. Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Plan showing part 
of Gooderham & Worts' fence removed for the 
erection of street railway on east Don Esplanade, 
17 Sept. 1917, Scale [1:480]. (THCA, File F-6-2, 
Dwg. 5303) 

Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Condition plan of 
area from Parliament Street to east of Trinity 
Street, and south of Mill Street to National Iron 
Works property, Nov. 1920, Scale [1:480]. Shows 
existing conditions, including buildings operated 
by G&W and water mains along streets. (THCA, File 
C-6-1, E-11, Dw~. 6307) 

Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Proposed location 
of oil pipelines of the British American Oil Co. 
Ltd. on Keating St. to the Goo[d]erham & Worts 
property east of the Don River, 11 Apr. 1924. 
Scale [1:2 4001. Diazo print, with ink and pencil 
crayon. (THCA, Dwg. PD 2/1/8163) 

Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Soundings: vicinity 
of Prince's St. to Trinity Street, 22 Jun. 1925, 
Scale [1:480]. (THCA, File C-14-4, Dwg. 8502) 

Toronto Terminal Railways, Plan of land required 
for Toronto Viaduct, July 1925. Revised Nov. 1925. 
(G&W On-site) 

Speight & Van Nostrand, Plan showing lands of G&W 
Ltd. north of the C.N.R., Trinity and Mill sts., 
Toronto, 6 Feb. 1926. Scale 1 in. equals 100 ft. 
(G&W On-site) 

Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Details of proposed 
intake chamber for Gooderham & Worts, 11 Aug. 
1926, rev. 2 Sept. 1926. Scale [1:8]. -- Scale 
[1:24] (THCA, File K-5-17, Dwg. 8722) 

Toronto Harbour Commissioners, photocopy of 
Proposed extension to Gooderham & Worts' intake, 9 
Nov. 1926. Scale [1:96]. (THCA, File 2-10-2, 
Drawing 8942) 

Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Plan showing shore 
lines and general conditions of north-east section 
of harbour, from Princess Street to east of Cherry 
Street, and location of Don River in 1847, 27 Dec. 
1930, Scale [1:1 2001. (THCA, File B-5-11, Drawing 
9594) 
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30. [Toronto Harbour Commissioners], Bulkhead wall 
from Yonge Street easterly, [193-?I, Scale [1:1 
8001. Ink on linen. (THCA, PD 2/7/38) 

31. [Toronto Harbour Commissioners], Bulkhead wall, 
section E-F, at foot of Parliament St., built in 
1926-7 for Gooderham & Worts Ltd. [193-?I. Scale 
[1:24]. Ink on linen (THCA, PD 2/7/42) 

32. Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Suggested diversion 
of Gooderham & Wortst intake pipe, 2 Feb. 1939. 
Scale [1:48]. (THCA, File K-5-17, Dwg. 11163; 
copy in G&W On-site Collection) 

33. [Toronto Harbour Commissioners], The Toronto 
Harbour Commissioners and Victory Mills Limited, 
17 Nov. 1944; rev. 19 Feb. 1947. Scale [1:720]. 
Ink on linen. Shows lands leased to Victory Mills 
Ltd. and G&W; location of intake pipe, waterworks 
tunnel, railway trackage and rights of way. (THCA, 
File EN-9, Dwg. 11792 B) 

34. Margison, Babcock & Associates Ltd., Windmill, 
Parliament and Fleet Sts., Toronto. Structural, 
foundation details and site plan, 15 Oct. 1953. 
Scale [1:96]. Copy. (THCA, File E-7-9, Dwg. 13989) 

35. Margison, Babcock & Associates Ltd., Windmill, 
Parliament and Fleet Sts., Toronto. architectural, 
elevation, plans & details, 30 Oct. 1953. Scale 
[1:24]. Copy. (THCA, File E-7-9, Dwg. 13989) 

36. Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Suggested 
relocation & widening of Parliament Street & 
realignment of railway trackage, Queen's Quay to 
Fleet Street, Study No. 1, 8 Mar. 1955. Scale 
[1:480]. (THCA, File 2-1-1, Dwg. 13395) 

37. Toronto Harbour Commissioners, [Suggested 
relocation & widening of Parliament Street], Study 
No. 2, March 1955. Scale [1:480]. (THCA, File 
2-1-1, D w ~ .  13395) 

38. Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Suggested 
relocation & widening of Parliament Street & 
realignment of railway trackage, Queen's Quay to 
Fleet Street, Study No. 3, 9 Mar. 1955. Scale 
[1:480]. (THCA, File 2-1-1, Dwg. 13395; copy found 
in G&W On-site) 
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39. Plan of Dock area, 28 Jan. 1959, General layout of 
Marine Terminals 15, 16 and 17, Railway Trackage 
and other facilities on the Queen Elizabeth Docks 
at Parliament Street and Queen's Quay. (G&W On- 
site) 

40. Gooderham & Worts Ltd., Extension of 10" molasses 
pipeline to dock #17, 7 May 1959, rev. 20 May 
1959. Scale [1:240]. (THCA, File K-5-17, Drawing 
13847) 

41. Toronto Harbour Commissioners, Gooderham & Worts 
Limited and the Toronto Harbour Commissioners, 8 
Feb. 1961. Scale [1:240]. (THCA, File EN-15, 
Drawing 13976) 

42. Toronto Harbour Commissioners, photocopy of 
Proposed division of old Parliament St., from 
Queen's Quay to Lakeshore Blvd. E., August 1964. 
Scale [1:240]. (THCA, File 2-1-1, Dwg. 15684) 

43. City of Toronto, City Surveyors Dept., copy of 
Compiled plan of lot 10, parts of lots 11, 25 and 
26, Reg'd. Plan E-694, Part of Block A, Reg'd. 
Plan E-674, Part of the Marsh Lands and Part of 
the Waterlot (Patent to Harbour Commissioners, 
Nov. 4, 1925) re: relocation of Parliament Street, 
south of Lake shore Blvd. East, 31 Jan. 1967, rev 
3 Apr. 1967. Scale [1:240]. (THCA, File 1-1-1, 
Dwg. 15684; copy also in G&W On-site) 

C. Property Grants, Deeds and Mortcracres 

The first twenty-eight items below were received 
by Gooderham & Worts Limited from The Old Windmill, 
Limited on 23 Jul. 1926, and are transcribed as they 
appeared on a contemporary list. It appears they were 
handed over for examination to the company's solicitors 
(Rowell, Reid, Wright & McMillan) who returned them on 
5 Jan. 1928, together with an additional eleven items, 
shown as nos. 29 to 40. Today nos. 20, 32, 33, 35 and 
39 are missing from the G&W On-site Collection, where 
all other items listed below are found. 

1. Deed, 10 Dec. 1847, Toronto General Hospital to 
William Gooderham for lots 2, 3, 4 and 5, south 
side of Mill Street 
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2. Deed, 14 Jul. 1834, Rev. John Strachan and others 
to William Gooderham for lot 6, south side of Mill 
Street. Framed. There is also a notarized copy. 

3. Deed, 10 Dec. 1847, Toronto General Hospital to 
William Gooderham, lots 7 and 8, south side of 
Mill Street 

4. Deed, 29 Jan. 1877, Mrs. M. A. Fitzhenry to 
William Gooderham, lot 9, south side Mill Street. 
With earlier deeds, other papers and a list of 
these dated November 1890. 

5. Deed, 19 Jun. 1847, William Stark to J.G. Worts, 
west half lot 10, south side Mill Street 

6. Deed, 12 May 1866, Grand Trunk Railway to William 
Gooderham, east half lot 10, south side Mill 
Street 

7. Deed, 6 Feb. 1854, James Stock et ux. to J. G. 
Worts, west half lot 11, south side of Mill Street 

8. Deed, 20 Jan. 1853, Toronto General Hospital to J. 
G. Worts, east half lot 11, south side of Mill 
Street 

9. Deed, 27 Jul. 1848, Toronto General Hospital to J. 
G. Worts, lots 7, 8 and 9, north side of Mill 
Street 

10. Deed, Toronto General Hospital to William Stark, 
west half lot 10, north side of Mill Street 

11. Deed, 8 Nov. 1849, Toronto General Hospital to J. 
G. Worts, east half lot 10, north side of Mill 
Street 

12. Abstract o f  title, for lot 10, north side of Mill 
Street 

13. Deed, 4 Apr. 1889, Edward B. Osler to Gooderham & 
Worts Ltd., lots 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11, north side of 
Mill Street 

14. Agreement and lease, 5 Feb. 1889, between 
Gooderham & Worts Limited and Canadian Pacific 
Railway 
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15. Deed and copy, 31 Jan. 1882, between William 
Gooderham and Grand Trunk Railway regarding right 
of way 

16. Deed and copy, 25 Jun. 1889, between Grand Trunk 
Railway and Gooderham & Worts Limited regarding 
right-of-way and transfer of lots 11 and 12, south 
side of Mill Street 

17. Release, 31 Jan. 1902, Gooderham & Worts Limited 
and Canadian Pacific Railway 

18. Deed, 31 Jan. 1902, between Gooderham & Worts 
Limited and Canadian Pacific Railway re lots on 
the north and south side of Mill Street; also 
regarding height of building permitted to be 
erected on lot 2, south side of Mill Street 

19. Agreement, 4 Sept. 1900, between Canadian Pacific 
Railway and Gooderham & Worts Limited re lands on 
Mill Street 

20. Notice, 30 Oct. 1901, between Ontario & Quebec 
Railway and Canadian Pacific Railway and Gooderham 
& Worts Limited re payment due. 

21. Deed, 6 Oct. 1884, William G. Gooderham to 
Gooderham & Worts Limited re distillery lands 

22. Deed, 18 Dec. 1882, George Gooderham to Gooderham 
& Worts re distillery lands 

23. Deed, 18 Dec. 1882, George Gooderham to Gooderham 
& Worts Limited re distillery lands 

24. Deed, 3 Nov. 1881, executors of William Gooderham 
and J. G. Worts to George Gooderham 

25. Bargain and sale, 1 Feb. 1868, William Gooderham 
to Gooderham & Worts re distillery lands, etc. 

26. Deed, 8 May 1903, Gooderham & Worts Limited to The 
General Distilling Co. Ltd. re property on south 
side of Mill Street 

27. Deed, 1 Dec. 1919, General Distilling Co. Ltd. to 
Gooderham & Worts Limited, transferring back lands 
referred to in #26 above. 
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28. Agreement, 9 Mar. 1915, between National Iron 
Works, Limited, and Gooderham & Worts Limited re 
slop pipe and crib in Toronto Bay 

29. List, prepared by The Old Windmill Limited to 
cover documents 1 through 28 above. 

30. Certified copy of License in Mortmain, 10 July 
1925. Included with it are a license dated Feb. 
1963 which renewed a license of 1948, and some 
correspondence of Dec. 1962. 

31. Copy of charter of incorporation of Gooderham & 
Worts, Limited, 28 December 1923. This is the 
corporation formed to hold certain assets being 
sold to H.C. Hatch and associates by The Old 
Windmill, Limited, a company created by renaming 
the original Gooderham & Worts Limited. The six 
Gooderham vendors signed the charter. 

32. Declaration, 23 Jul. 1926, by W.G. Gooderham in 
regard payment of mortgage 

33. Declaration, 15 Jul. 1926, by W.G. Gooderham in 
connection with title 

34. Grant, 21 Jan. 1851, Crown to William Gooderham, 
water lots in front of lots 4 and 5. Registered as 
NO. 4386-E.S. 

35. Patent, 12 Jan. 1848, registered as No. 4385-E.S. 

36. Grant, 11 Feb. 1889, Crown to Gooderham & Worts 
(Limited) covering water lots. Registered as No. 
4384-E.S. 

37. Grant, 12 Jul. 1858, Crown to William Gooderham, 
water lot 4, south side of Front Street. Regfd. as 
No. 4387-E.S. Framed. Notarized copy exists also. 

38. Quit claim, 11 Jul. 1913, by H. M. the King to 
Gooderham & Worts Ltd. of water lots in City of 
Toronto. Unregistered. 

39. Agreement, W.G. Gooderham and H.C. Hatch, 22 
December 1923 

40. Conveyance, 10 Jul. 1926, The Old Windmill Limited 
to Gooderham & Worts, Limited. Registered as No. 
9891-E.P. 
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41. Mortgage, Dec. 1923, Gooderham & Worts Limited to 
Gooderham & Worts Ltd. 

42. Mortgage, Dec. 1923, Gooderham & Worts Limited to 
The Old Windmill Ltd. 

43. List of Conveyances, Mortgages, etc., taken by 
H.C. Hatch, 3/11/27, with those returned checked 
off. 

44. Deed, 20 Jun. 1928, Toronto Harbour Commissioners 
to Gooderham & Worts Limited, for dock site at 
foot of Parliament Street. Copy plan attached. 

45. Deed, 30 Jul. 1934, Gooderham & Worts Limited to 
Liquid Carbonic Canadian Corp. covering lots 2, 3 
and pt. 4, south side Mill Street 

46. Affadavit and deposit, 2 Aug. 1934, by W. G. 
Gooderham in matter of title to water lots 2, 3, 
4, 5 and 6, Registered Plan 108 

47. Deed and declaration, 3 May 1961, Gooderham & 
Worts Ltd. to Toronto Harbour Commissioners for 
part of dock property. 

48. Deed, 8 Jul. 1968, Liquid Carbonic to Gooderham & 
Worts Limited transferring back the land described 
in #45 above. Also included is correspondence; 
copy of 1934 agreement between G&W and Liquid 
Carbonic; 1940 plan of southeast corner of Mill 
and Parliament streets and 1949 plot plan. 

D. Paintinqs, Sketches and Ensravinqs 

1. Thomas Young (c.1805-1860), General View of the 
City of Toronto, U.C., 1835, lith. by N. Currier, 
New York. The view is taken across the water from 
east of the windmill, seen along the right edge. 
(MTRL, T-10247; see illustration p. 153) 

2. John George Howard (1803-1890), New Gaol and 
proposed Courthouse, Front and Berkeley Streets, 
Toronto, c. 1838, watercolour on card. The 
windmill with its sails or sweeps still in place 
is seen in the background. Some evidence points to 
their having been removed in 1846. (MTRL, T-11968; 
see illustration p. 155) 
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Francis Hincks Granger (1829-1906), Toronto in 
1849, pencil with touches of purple ink on seven 
sheets of wove paper joined, 1849. At the right 
end of the panorama appear G&Wfs storehouse and 
mill-distillery; also William Gooderham's house. 
(MTRL, T-33315; See illustration p. 157) 

4. William Armstrong (1822-1914), ViewoftheMill 
and Distillery from the east, painted c. 1855, 
watercolour, signed lower right. (HW Collection; 
see illustration p. 159) 

William Armstrong (1822-1914), View of the 
Windmill, painted c. 1855, watercolour, signed 
'WA,' lower left. Based on Young's engraving of 
1835; Armstrong did not arrive in Canada until 
1851. (HW Collection; see illustration p. 159) 

David D. Robertson (£1. 1854-70), Views of the 
Distillery of Messrs. Gooderham & Worts, Toronto, 
The Canadian Illustrated News [Hamilton], No. 24, 
April 25, 1863, pp 282-3 and Supplement. Twelve 
woodcut engravings: No. 1 - Boiler House; No. 2 - 
Engine Room; No. 3 - Machinery, first half; No. 4 - Stone Floor, Grinding; No. 5 - Machinery, second 
section; No. 6 - Mashing Room; No. 7 - Fermenting 
House; No. 8 - Still Room, one section; No. 9 - 
Rectifying Room, one section; and three unnumbered 
plates: Front View; Store House, Wharf and Grain 
Elevator; Distillery, Malting House, Old Wind-mill 
- View of North Side. (MTRL; Baldwin Room; see 
illustrated as part of Appendix B, pp. 94-99. Some 
images are covered by a paper patch holding a tear 
together until conservation can be undertaken) 

View of the Streetsville [G&W] Flax works, The 
Canada Farmer, 2 Jul. 1866, vol. 111, p193. 

8. Views of the buildings and wharf on the company's 
letterhead, c.1868. (MTRL, Baldwin Room, S24; see 
illustration on front cover. Other examples, 
closely trimmed, are found in scrapbooks in the HW 
Archives and Baldwin Room) 

The extensive Lanman & Kemp correspondence at 
MTRL covers a period from 1864 to 1879, and 
allows the introduction of this letterhead to 
be identified with fair accuracy as having 
taken place in April 1868 . The heading in 
previous use proclaimed G&W as 'Distillers, 
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Millers, Maltsters and Linen Manufacturers.' 
However, the burning of G&W's flax mill at 
Streetsville in January 1868 and decision to 
not rebuild dictated a new letterhead. 

In the central panel the malt house is shown 
with only one kiln tower at the far end, 
while the structure between the malt house 
and building south of it is one storey in 
height, rather than two as it was later. In 
late 1868 the letterhead was altered slightly 
to accommodate "Established" across one end 
of the panel and "A.D. 1832" on the other. 

9. Gooderham & Worts, 1855, oil on canvas, attributed 
to John Colin Forbes (1846-1925). Forbes was too 
young to have made the painting in the year 
depicted. It is based on Armstrong's work : 
above. (HW Collection; see illustration p. 161) 

10. Gooderham & Worts Distillery, established 1832. 
Burnt 26 October 1869-at work 4 months afterwards, 
Oil on canvas, painted c. 1870. The stone mill- 
distillery and adjacent fermenting cellar are seen 
ablaze. The malt kilns at the right edge of the 
picture are still at their original height. (HW 
Collection; see illustration p. 163) 

11. Gooderham & Worts Distillery, established 1832. 
Restored building - 1st of May 1870, oil on 
canvas, painted c. 1870. This is from the same 
point of view as the preceding canvas, and was 
probably by the same artist. One detail, however, 
is different between the pair and jars the eye: in 
the fire-view the porticoed building right of the 
arch in the low wall is a brick colour, but is 
stone in the later painting. It has always been 
brick. (HW Collection; see illustration p. 163) 

12. Gooderham & Worts, 1870, oil on canvas, painted 
between 1872-77. At the right edge is a storehouse 
completed in 1872, but dormer windows that lit the 
attic of the distillery by 1877 do not appear. (HW 
Collection; see illustration p. 165) 

13. Gooderham & Worts Distillery, plate 74 opposite 
page 348 in J. Timperlake, Illustrated Toronto: 
Past and Present, Toronto: Peter A. Gross, 1877. 
Dormer windows light the attic in the distillery 
building. (MTRL, Baldwin Room) 
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14. William D. Blatchly (1838-1903), Gooderham & Worts 
Distillery, 1884, watercolour. In this panoramic 
view from the water, the north end of the malt 
kilns has been rebuilt to a substantially greater 
height, and a fourth storey and cupola have been 
added to the two central bays of the Pure Spirits 
building. (HW Collection; see illustration p. 165) 

15. Arthur Henry Hider (1870-1952), Gooderham & Worts, 
Ltd. Toronto, [1896], colour lithograph on wove 
paper, Toronto Lithographing Co. (MTRL, T-30536) 

16. H. Oswald Stacey (1909-1968), Winter Morning, 
York, 1832. c. 1950. Oil on canvas. Reproduced on 
a Christmas card sent by G&W. (HW Collection; see 
illustration p. 167) 

17. H. Oswald Stacey (1909-1968), Winter Fete on 
Toronto Bay. c. 1950. Oil on canvas. Reproduced on 
a Christmas card sent by G&W. (HW Collection; see 
illustration p. 169) 

18. Anon., View of Gooderham & Worts, oil on canvas, 
likely painted in 20th century. Similar to and 
probably derived from H-9 above, attributed to 
Forbes. (MTRL, Baldwin Room) 

E . Photoqraphs 

1. Employees, early 1900s, original print. Shows 80 
to 100 employees in front of east wall of malt 
house; sign over door includes Royal cypher 'ER' 
for King Edward VII. (HW Archives, Box 12-A) 

2. Trinity Street, looking south across CPR towards 
Mill St., c.1907 (MTRL, T-30222) 

3. Trinity Street, looking north across CPR tracks 
above Mill St., c.1907. Visible on the east side 
of the street beyond the crossing are two semi- 
detached houses at 53-55 Trinity Street built by 
J.G. Worts in 1876 and the G&W cooperage erected 
in 1906. (MTRL, T-30223; see illustration p. 171) 

4. View of Gooderham & Wortsr property from the Inner 
Harbour, 21 Nov. 1912, by Arthur Goss. (THCA, PC 
2/139) 
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5. Truck and trailer loaded with bottled water 
turning into yard south of cooperage on Trinity 
Street, in Canadian Courier, V. XVI, no. 5, Jul. 
4, 1914, p. 7, 'Vogue of the Motor Truck,' by 
Britton B. Cooke. At the time of the article 
George Edgar Gooderham was the manager of a G&W 
subsidiary, "York Springs." Its offices are listed 
in directories at 49 Wellington St. E. 

6. Album of views of head office, Hiram Walker & 
Sons, Walkerville, c. 1910 (G&W On-site) 

7. Mouth of the old Don, Gooderham & Worts Dock and 
Grain House, Tank Car B.A.O.X. 141, 2 October 1915 
(NAC, Merrilees Collection, Neg. PA-136358) 

Photographs of the Distillery of Gooderham & Worts 
Limited, Toronto, Canada, operated by British 
Acetones Toronto Limited (Imperial Munitions 
Board), 1916-18. Dates noted on each print. 
Photographer unknown. (CTA, SC-583; see Appendix 
A, p. 79, for a listing and description) 

This collection of 168 photographs is without 
equal as a pictorial record of the distillery 
during an important time in its history. 
Complementing the photographic record is a 
book, Report of the British Acetones Toronto 
Limited, May 1916-November 1918, by Col. A.E. 
Gooderham, who was managing director of 
British Acetones. 

N.E. Section of harbour, Gooderham & Worts wharf, 
29 Mar. 1916 (NAC, Merrilees Collection, Series C- 
012736, item 941) 

10. Construction of Toronto Street Railway line to 
Port Industrial District, 19 Jul. 1917, by Arthur 
Beales. View looking southeast from point Dl 
showing cattle byres of G&W in background. (NAC, 
Merrilees Collection, PA-167067; copy held by THCA 
as PC 1/1/2199) 

11. Gooderham & Worts's elevator, coal shed and 
distillery, 19 Nov. 1918, attributed to Arthur 
Beales. Horses and carts are being used to dump 
fill materials along western edge of National Iron 
Works' property. (NAC, Merrilees Collection, Neg. 
PA-136346; copy held by THCA as PC 1/1/3391) 
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12. View looking northwest at National Iron Works' 
buildings, with G&W wharf and central waterfront 
in background, 19 Nov. 1918, attributed to Arthur 
Beales. Horses and carts are being used to dump 
fill materials along western edge of National Iron 
Works' property. (NAC, Merrilees Collection, Neg. 
PA-136347; copy held by THCA as PC 1/1/3390) 

13. Gooderham & Worts, Toronto, Dec. 16, 1918 (NAC, 
Toronto Harbour Commissioners Collection, Neg. PA- 
096856) 

14. Gooderham's Distillery, 19171 (CTA, William James 
Collection, Neg. 3061) 

15. Old building, Gooderham & Worts Distillery, 1924, 
by F.J. Brooks (NAC, Merrilees Collection, Series 
C-020416) 

16. G&W (Men's) Baseball Team, 1925, Winners of 
Intermediate division, T.I.A., by Mackintosh 
Studios, Toronto. Card-mounted, with names. (G&W 
On-site) 

17. G&W Ladies Softball Team, 1925, by Mackintosh 
Studios, Toronto, Card-mounted, with names. (G&W 
On-site) 

18. Wooden pilings for stone levee at the foot of 
Parliament Street, 28 Sept. 1926, by Arthur Beales 
(THCA, PC 1/1/7195) 

19. View looking southwest from roof of gasometer near 
corner of Front and Trinity Streets toward Toronto 
Grade Separation, Parliament Street subway, and 
progress of reclamation south to bulkhead wall, by 
Arthur Beales, 14 May 1928. (NAC, Merriless 
Collection, Acc. 1980-149, Group C, Sub-series I, 
Pt. I, item 7849; copy in THCA as PC 1/1/7849) 

20. Looking south from Gooderham & Worts, Toronto, 14 
May 1928, attr. to Arthur Beales (NAC, Merrilees 
Collection, Neg. PA-136482) 

21. Mill at Meadowvale, [Ont], July 4, 1931, taken 
under Eric Arthur's direction. (OA, Arthur 
Collection, 43-E-l(1); see illustration p. 173) 

22. View looking east from top of gasometer near 
corner of Front and Trinity Streets, by Arthur 
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Beales, 22 Oct. 1931. (NAC, Merriless Collection, 
Acc. 1980-149, Group C, Sub-series I, Part I, item 
9640; copy at THCA as PC 1/1/9640) 

23. View looking east from top of gasometer near 
corner of Front and Trinity Streets, by Arthur 
Beales, 22 Oct. 1931. (NAC, Merriless Collection, 
Acc. 1980-149, Group C, Sub-series I, Part I, item 
9641; copy at THCA as PC 1/1/9641) 

24. People seen in Window, 1934. Employees at 
distillery (HW Archives Box 12-A) 

25. Double-header C.N.R. train passing Gooderham & 
Worts, 10 Oct. 1934 (NAC, Merrilees Collection, 
Series C-010730, item 10730) 

26. Gooderham & Worts Distillery, established 1832, 
n.d. (NAC, Merrilees Collection, Neg. PA-136485) 

27. Truck, Gooderham & Worts Ltd., n.d. (NAC, 
Merrilees Collection, Series B-005244, item 5244) 

28. G&W Long Service Men who were entertained at 
luncheon, 1 Feb. 1937. Two new G&W delivery-trucks 
are seen in background. (G&W On-site) 

29. Ice in Parliament Street Slip, with buildings of 
Gooderham & Worts in background, 24 March 1939, by 
Arthur Beales. (THCA, PC 1/4/56-2) 

30. Ice in Parliament Street Slip, with buildings of 
Gooderham & Worts in background, 24 March 1939, by 
Arthur Beales. (THCA, PC 1/4/56-3) 

31. Scows at Gooderham & Worts' dock, 11 Sept. 1941, 
by Arthur Beales. A tug and scow C.M.C. No. 10 are 
in Parliament Street slip to discharge cargo into 
pipeline to distillery. (THCA, PC 1/1/11710) 

32. Scows at Gooderham & Worts' dock, 11 Sept. 1941, 
by Arthur Beales. Scow C.M.C. No. 10 is in 
Parliament Street slip discharging cargo into 
pipeline to distillery, seen in background. (THCA, 
PC 1/1/11711) 

33. Scows at Gooderham & Worts' dock, 11 Sept. 1941, 
by Arthur Beales. A tug and scow C.M.C. No. 10 are 
in Parliament Street slip to discharge cargo into 
pipeline to distillery. (THCA, PC 1/1/11712) 
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34. View looking north toward Gooderham & Wortsr dock 
and Parliament Street subway, [194-1, by Arthur 
Beales (THCA, PC 1/2/302) 

35. Pensioners' and Long Servicemens' Dinner, 29 Mar. 
1946. (G&W On-site) 

36. Long-service employees, with names. In The Eveninq 
Telesram [Toronto], 7 Mar. 1947 

37. Aerial view looking west from Cherry Street across 
East Bayfront, showing progress of reclamation 
south of Queen's Quay, [Sept. 194911, by Gilbert 
Milne (THCA, PC 1/3/279) 

38. Six low-level aerial views of Gooderham & Worts 
Distillery, c. 1950, (OA, Northway-Gestalt 
Collection, C-30, nos. ES 4-200 to 202 and ES 4- 
234 to 236; see illustration p. 175) 

39. G&W operations conference at Walkerville, 1953; 
G&W sales meeting c. 1950; Christmas party; 
0.D.Johnston (HW Archives, Box 12-A) 

40. Gooderham & Worts, foot of Trinity Street showing 
replica of windmill, 11 April 1954, by J.V. Salmon 
(MTRL, Baldwin Room, S 1-430) 

41. Seven aerial views of Distillery and Old Windmill, 
c. 1955, nos. A 23618-1 to A 23618-7 (G&W On-site) 

42. High level aerial view of waterfront looking 
northwest from Cherry Street, c. 1955, (OA, 
Northway-Gestalt Collection, C-30, ES 6-171) 

43. General low-level aerial view of Toronto looking 
west from Fleet Street and Don River, [I9581 (OA, 
Northway-Gestalt Collection, C-30, ES 10-781) 

44. Herb E. Hatch congratulating William 8 .  Deller, 
1960, on fifty years' service to G&W (HW Archives, 
Box 12-A; also GhW On-site) 

45. Herb E. Hatch and O.D. Johnston congratulating 
James Barry and Norman Hardy, 1960, on fifty 
yearsf service to G&W (HW Archives, Box 12-A; also 
G&W On-site) 

46. Group of a dozen men; presentation ceremony, c. 
1960, by Pringle & Booth. Copy negs. (G&W On-site) 
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47. Replica windmill being demolished, Globe & Mail, 
21 Mar. 1960, p. 9 

Approx. 25 informal pictures taken at retirement 
dinner in Walkerville for O.D. Johnston, president 
of G&W, 8 Sept 1960. Also negatives. (G&W On-site) 

Low level aerial view of Gardiner Expressway 
pathway, Woodbine to Cherry Street, Apr. 1962 (OA, 
Northway-Gestalt Collection, C-30, ES 16-638, 639) 

Low level aerial views of Gardiner Expressway 
under construction near Cherry Street, Nov. 1962 
(OA, Northway-Gestalt Collection, C-30, ES 18-226 
to 241) 

Low level aerial views of Gardiner Expressway at 
Don River under construction, Jul. 1963 through 
Jul. 1965 (OA, Northway-Gestalt Collection, C-30, 
ES 19-389 to 399, 415 to 424 and 711 to 721; 
ES 20-438 and 820 to 829; ES 21-79; ES 22-37) 

G&W Employees, 1965, approximately 10 pictures. 
(HW Archives Box 12-A) 

Approx. 85 exterior views, 1972-74, by CIHB 
recording teams. 35 mm, b+w format (Parks Canada, 
CIHB, geocode 06101004500002, buildings A to M) 

Aerial view looking northeast from Inner Harbour 
across Queen Elizabeth Docks and Keating Channel, 
27 Dec. 1979, by Les Baxter. (THCA, PC 14/14205) 

Herb C. Hatch, former president of G&W, 27 May 
1982, speaking at the 150th year Reception at the 
Plant (G&W On-site) 

George A. Wilton, v.p. of G&W Ltd., 27 May 1982, 
speaking at the 150th year Reception at the Plant 
(G&W On-site) 

Four company officers, 27 May 1982, at the 150th 
year Reception at the Plant. Names and titles on 
reverse (G&W On-site) 

Four large aerial views in colour, 1982, by Larry 
Turner, Engineering Division, Hiram Walker & Sons, 
Walkerville. (G&W On-site) 
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59. Approx. 30 exterior views in colour, 1984/5, by 
Frank Mascarin, Engineering Division, Hiram Walker 
& Sons, Walkerville. (G&W On-site) 

60. Barge San Juan and tug Atomic at Gooderham & 
Worts' dock at foot of Parliament Street, 21 June 
1988, by Michael Moir. (THCA, PC 21/57) 

61. Molasses being pumped from barge San Juan into 
Gooderham & Worts1 pipeline at the foot of 
Parliament Street, 21 June 1988, by Michael Moir. 
(THCA, PC 21/58) 

62. Several views, 1988, taken to illustrate report, 
Gooderham & Worts Distillery Complex, #1988-38, 
for the Historic Sites and Monuments Board of 
Canada. (Parks Canada, Ottawa, Architectural 
History Branch files) 

63. 108 coloured views of exteriors in 8 x 10 format; 
and 546 coloured views of exteriors and interiors 
in 4 x 6 format; one large panoramic view from the 
CN Tower, May 1988, by Percy Frith, Hiram Walker & 
Sons, Walkerville. (CTA, SC-411; other sets as 
well as the negatives, are in the G&W On-site 
Collection) 

64. Five large format views of exteriors in C O ~ O U ~ ,  
commissioned July 1989 by G&W from Steven Evans, 
Toronto, for a poster (Steven Evans Studio) 

65. 735 exterior and interior views as detailed below, 
1991-92, by Heritage Recording Services, DPW, for 
the Canadian Inventory of Historic Building (CIHB, 
Parks Canada, Ottawa, HRS-0908) 

5 b+w exteriors, 35 mm, 1991 
6 coloured-slide exteriors, 35 mm, 1991 
185 b+w exteriors, 35 mm, 1992 
401 b+w interiors, 35 mm, 1992 
112 coloured-slide exteriors, 35 mm, 1992 
20 coloured-slide interiors, 35 mm, 1992 
6 exterior transparencies, 4x6" format, 1992 

66. 538 exterior and interior views as detailed below, 
plus assorted floor plans and moulding profiles, 
1993-94, by Heritage Recording Services, DPW, for 
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Canadian Inventory of Historic Building as part of 
the Designated Building Recording Program (CIHB, 
Parks Canada, Ottawa, HRS-0908) 

468 b+w views, 35 mm 
40 coloured slides, 35mm 
30 photogrammetric plates 

F. Motion Pictures and Videos 

1. Red Brick and Pure Spirits, Produced by Polymath & 
Thaumaturge Inc. with YYZ Pictures. 15 minutes. 
Toronto Historical Board, 1990. (video). 

G. Newspaper Reports and Maqazine Articles 

1. 'Steam Engines,' Colonial Advocate [York], 4 July 
1833, p. 3 

2. "Mr. Faulkener, engineer to Gooderham & Worts, 
exhibited a small high-power engine at the Fair of 
the Toronto Mechanics' Institute." The Globe, Oct. 
21, 1848. 

3. 'Messrs. Gooderham & Worts, City Steam Mills and 
Distillery,' The British Colonist [Toronto], 16 
Apr. 1850, p. 2. See Appendix B, p. 89. 

4 .  ". . . Breweries and distilleries are numerous. 
Messrs. Gooderham & Worts, for example, employ 
from 20 to 30 men, in their different departments. 
They make about 800 gallons of whiskey a day, and 
grind about 300 bushels of wheat. They commenced 
business in 1831. The firm ship annually about 
325,000 bushels of wheat to Britain, from their 
wharf at the east end of the city. . . . '  The 
Globe [Toronto], 13 Dec. 1856, Supplement, p. 4. 
Produced in support of Toronto's bid to be chosen 
as the capital of Canada, this supplement is rare 
and does not appear on most microfilms of The 
Globe. A copy is found in MTRL, Baldwin Room. 

'New Steam Mills and Distillery,' The Globe, 11 
July 1859, p. 2. See Appendix B, p. 90. 
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'Annual review of the Trade of Toronto for 1861: 
Distillery of Messrs. Gooderham & Worts,' 'The 
Globe, 7 Feb. 1862, p. 1. See Appendix B, p. 91. 

'Street Architecture: The Building Trade in 
Toronto-New Malt House &c., for Messrs. Gooderham 
& Worts,' The Globe, March 26, 1863, p. 2. See 
Appendix B, p. 90. 

'Description of the Distillery of Messrs. 
Gooderham and Worts, Toronto, Canada West, April 
1863,' The Canadian Illustrated News [Hamilton], 
April 25, 1863, pp. 282-3 and Supplement. See 

View and descri~tion of the Streetsville IG&Wl 
Flax works,  he- Canada Farmer, 2 July 186i, vol. 
111, p. 193 

10. 'Building in Toronto - Cattle Buildings,' The 
Globe, 3 Nov. 1866, p. 1 

11. 'Building in Toronto - More Cattle Sheds,' The 
Globe, 23 Jul. 1867, p. 1 

12. 'Cattle Fattening in Toronto,' The Globe, 3 Oct. 
1867, p. 2. See Appendix B, p. 100. 

13. 'City News - Flax Mills Closed,' The Globe, 7 Nov. 
1867, p. 2 

14. 'Destructive Fire at Streetsville. Gooderham & 
Worts' Linen Mills Burned Down,' The Globe, 27 
Jan. 1868, p. 2 

15. Letter to editor, objecting to G&W1s pollution of 
the Bay. The Globe, 11 July 1868, Supplement, p. 1 

16. 'Progress of Toronto - St. Lawrence Ward,' The 
Globe, 1 Dec. 1868, p. 1 

17. 'Destructive Fire: Burning of Messrs. Gooderham & 
Worts' Distillery last night,' The Globe, 27 Oct. 
1869 

18. 'Disastrous Conflagration. Gooderham &Wortsf 

Distillery Destroyed - Immense Destruction of 
Property - The City brilliantly Illuminated - 
Spirits on fire on the Bay - No Insurance - Loss 
over $100,000," The Dailv Leader, 27 Oct. 1869 
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19. 'Messrs. Gooderham & Worts' Distillery,' [the 
speedy pace af reconstruction], The Dailv Leader, 
29 Nov. 1869, p. 3. See Appendix B, p. 101. 

20. 'Progress of Toronto - St. Lawrence Ward,' The 
Globe, 3 Jun. 1871, p. 4 

21. 'Canadian Manufactures - No. IV, One of the 
Largest Distilleries in the World: Gooderham & 
Worts, Toronto,' The Mail [Toronto], 23 Apr. 1872, 
p. 2. See Appendix B, p. 102. 

22. 'City Improvements, St. James and St. Lawrence 
wards, ~issrs. ~ooderham & Worts, ' The Mail, 5 
Dec. 1872, p. 4 

23. 'Progress of Toronto - St. Lawrence Ward,' The 
Globe, 5 Jun. 1873, p. 4. See Appendix B, p. 101. 

24. Article in The Gazette [Montreal], 1877. Quoted in 
entry on William Gooderham in "The Canadian 
Biographical Dictionary and Portrait Gallery of 
Eminent and Self-Made Men, Ontario Volume." 
Toronto: American Biographical Publishing Company, 
1880. 

25. 'The Builders - St. Lawrence Ward: The Marsh,' The 
Globe, 27 Nov. 1880, p. 8 

26. 'The Building Trade - St. Lawrence Ward,' The 
Globe, 15 Oct. 1881, p. 6. "An addition to 
distillery, owned by Gooderham & Worts; cost 
$2,000." 

27. Contract Record, v. 41 (19 Jan. 1927), p. 47. A 
warehouse [Bldg. #74] is to be built for G&W at 
cost of $75,000, V.L. Gladman, architect. 

28. 'Contracts Awarded,' Contract Record, v.41 (16 
Feb. 1927) p. 48. To Dickie Construction for a 
warehouse for G&W [Bldg. #74]. 

29. 'Contracts Awarded,' Contract Record, v.41 (6 Apr. 
1927) p. 54. To Dickie Construction for a rack 
warehouse for G&W [Bldg. #75]. 

30. 'Two Old Firms Joining Hands Means No Change of 
Name,' Eveninq Teleqram, 14 Oct. 1927 
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31. Contract Record, v. 43 (4 Dec. 1929), p. 1428, 
"Mainly Constructional . . . Officials at Hiram 
Walker-Gooderham & Worts have made the 
announcement that the company will begin the 
manufacture of carbonic acid gas. This gas is a 
product of the distillery and is used in the soft 
drink business. A $300,000 plant for this purpose 
will be erected at their works in Toronto . . ." 

32. The Hiram Walker Club News, May 1939 - Dec. 1939 
passim. Published by Hiram Walker, Peoria, Ill. 
(HW Archives) 

33. The Barclay Family Maqazine, March 1945 - July 
1952 passim. House journal of Jas. Barclay & Co. 
Ltd., an affiliate that co-occupied the G&W site 
c. 1941-50 (HW Archives) 

34. 'Old Times at the East End of the BayIrby C.H.J. 
Snider, The Eveninq Teleqram, [Toronto] 4 Jan. 
1947 

35. Canadian Motorist, March 1947, p 59, illustrated. 
G&W, the producers of Hot Shot antifreeze, feted 
100 long-serving employees at the Royal York and 
marked the retirement of president Herb E. Hatch. 

36. 'Industry Leaders: Gooderham & Worts, Ltd.' The 
Monopoly State Review, vol. 7, no. 6, July 1948, 
p. 11 

37. 'Gooderham & Worts Limited,' by William Prentice, 
Canadian Beveraqe Review, May-June, 1949. See 
Appendix B, p. 106-112. 

38. The Roundtable, Mar/Apr 1956 - Feb/Mar 1974 
passim. (HW Archives) 

39. The Spirit, monthly 1952-58; daily 1958-92; now 
weekly, passim. House journal of Hiram Walker- 
Gooderham & Worts Ltd. (HW Archives) 

40. 'Famed Mill at Meadowvale Razedrtby Clifford 
Bowers, Globe & Mail, 8 Apr. 1954 

41. 'Windmill Reproduced Close to its Original Site,' 
by J.C. Boylen, Globe & Mail, 10 Apr. 1954, p. 17 
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42. Hotel and Tavern, May 1954, article on Oswald D. 
Johnston, president of G&W, 1947-1960. 

43. 'From Bags to Barrels,' The Teleqram, 22 Jun. 1967 

44. 'Wheezing and coughing -- but with style,' by Sid 
Adelman, Teleqram, 7 Feb. 1970 

45. 'The manufacturers that stayed put,' by Susan 
Goldenberg, Globe & Mail, 9 Feb. 1973, p. 29 

46. 'Distillery replaced Windmill,' by Donald Jones, 
Toronto Star, June 14, 1975, p. 67 

47. 'Bay Street Marriage of the Year,' Toronto Star, 
13 Apr. 1980 

48. The Ambassador, semi-annual 1982-88; thrice-yearly 
1988-93; now quarterly, passim. House journal of 
Hiram Walker-Allied Vintners. (HW Archives) 

49. 'Oldest Distillery Has Spirit after 150 Years,' by 
Frances Kelly, Toronto Star, 27 Jul. 1982 

50. 'Chasing after old windmills,' by Mike Filey, The 
Sun [Toronto], 17 Apr. 1983, p. S26 - 

51. 'High Spirited Industry - A Waterfront Landmark,' 
Port of Toronto News, v. 31, no. 4, 1984, pp. 8-9, 

52. 'More than just spirit retained at North America's 
oldest distillery,' Real Estate News, 19 May 1989, 
p. A3 

53. '158-year-old distillery is running out of 
spirits,' Toronto Star, 25 Aug. 1990 

54. 'Vintage Spirits,' by John Barber, Globe & Mail, 6 
Aug. 1992, Design Section, p. D6 

H. Books, Studies and Pamphlets 

1. Dun & Bradstreet, Reference Books for Canadian 
Business, 1864-1983 (OA, MS-489) These published 
books contain summary ratings. More interesting 
are the fuller and more candid handwritten-reports 
sent in periodically by Dun's agents, which were 



Books, Studies and Pamphlets 

used to set the ratings. Those for 19th-century 
Canada are available in the Baker Library, Harvard 
Business School, Cambridge, Mass. 

Illustrated Atlas of the County of Peel, Toronto: 
Walker & Miles, 1877, p. 61 

Timperlake, J., Illustrated Toronto: Past and 
Present, Toronto: Peter A. Gross, 1877, pp. 271-3 

Robertson, John Ross, Landmarks of Toronto, 
Toronto: J. Ross Robertson, 1894-1914, v. I, p277; 
V. 11, 642-4, 812-3; V. V, 532-4, 583-5; V. VI, 
499, 500. 

Kribs, Louis P., Report . . . in connection with 
the investigation held by the Canadian Royal 
Commission on the liquor traffic, Toronto: Murray 
Printing Co., 1894. 

Canada. Report of the Royal Commission on the 
Liquor Traffic, Ottawa: S.E. Dawson, 1895 

Spence, Francis Stephens, The Facts of the Case: A 
Summary of the Most Important Evidence and 
Argument Presented in the Report of the Royal 
Commission on Liquor Traffic, c. 1895 (no copy 
located in Toronto libraries) 

Gooderham, A.E., Report of the British Acetones 
Toronto, Limited, Toronto, Canada, May 1916- 
November 1918. Toronto: University of Toronto 
Press, 1919. xxiii, 692 p., [lo] leaves of plates. 
The only copies of this rare work that have been 
located located are in Ottawa in the National 
Library and the Canadian Institute for Scientific 
and Technical Information. The book contains 
detailed descriptions of G&W1s buildings and 
equipment. 

Nordyke & Marmon Co., Flour and Cereal Milling 
Machinery and Mill Supplies. Price book No. 2520. 
Indianapolis, Ind. c.1920. Several pieces of 
equipment illustrated in this publication can be 
found on-site today. (G&W On-site) 

Shuttleworth, E.B., The Windmill and Its Times; A 
Series of Articles Dealing with the Early Days of 
the Windmill, Toronto: University of Toronto 
Press, 1924. 
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11. Carnegie, David, The History of Munitions Supply 
in Canada, 1914-1918, Toronto: Longmans, Green & 
Co., 1925 

12. Symons, Harry L., The Windmill: Notes and Digests 
from E.B. Shuttleworth's Book. Toronto: Designed 
and printed by Rous & Mann for G&W to mark its 
centennial, c. 1932. 

13. Gooderham & Worts Ltd., Alcohol in Industry, 
Toronto, 1938. 26 p., illus. Designed and produced 
by Brigdens Limited, Toronto. 

14. Higgins, Alex, Boiler Room, Questions and Answers, 
New York: ~cGraw- ill Inc., 1945. (G&W On-site) 

15. Denison. Merrill. The Barley and the Stream, The 
Molson story,   or onto : ~ c ~ l e l l a n d  and stewart, 
1955 

16. Canadian Manufacturers Association. Industry '67, 
Centennial Perspective. May 1967, pp. 205-07 

17. Reaman, G. Elmore, A History of Vaughan Township, 
1971, p. 115 

18. Ruggle, Rev. Richard, Norval on the Credit River, 
Erin, [Ont.], Printed br Press PorcBpic, 1973, p. 
59 

19. Rannie, William F., Canadian Whiskey, The Product 
and the Industry, Lincoln: W.F. Rannie, 1976. 

20. Rose, Phyllis, The Gooderham & Worts Distillery 
Complex, 12 April 1979. A paper prepared for 
course 412s in Fine Art History under Prof. 
Douglas Richardson, University of Toronto. 

21. Parkin, John Hamilton, Aeronautical Research in 
Canada, 1917-1957, Ottawa: National Research 
Council, 1983. Parkin, a mechanical engineer on 
the construction staff for British Acetones 
Toronto Limited, was later head of aeronautical 
research for NRC. 

22. Newell, Diane, and Ralph Greenhill, Survivals: 
Aspects of Industrial Archaeology in Ontario, 
Erin, [Ont.]: The Boston Mills Press, 1989, pp. 
85-108, 'Gooderham & Worts Distillery, Toronto.' 
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23. Otto, Stephen A., Report on Gooderham & Worts 
Distillery, [for Gooderham & Worts Ltd.], March 
1988 

24. Historic Sites and Monuments Board of Canada; 
Julie Harris, Architectural History Branch, Agenda 
Paper No. 1988-38, Gooderham & Worts Distillery 
Complex, 1988 

25. Parks Canada, In Commemoration of the Gooderham & 
Worts Distillery Complex, Sept. 16, 1989. Souvenir 
program for the unveiling ceremony for a historic 
plaque commemorating G&W erected by the Historic 
Sites and Monuments Board of Canada. 

26. Diamond, A.J., Donald Schmitt and Company, Mark 
Fram, Polymath & Thaumaturge Inc. and Laventhol 
and Horwath, Gooderham & Worts/Triangle Lands: 
Urban Planning Study and Heritage Assessment, 
Final Report for the City of Toronto Planning and 
Development Department and the Toronto Historical 
Board, July 1990 

27. Hiram Walker-Allied Vintners-Allied Lyons Pension 
Funds, with a consultant team, Gooderham & Worts: 
An Urban Design Proposal, Toronto: April 1991 

28. At different times Hiram Walker-Gooderham & Worts 
has had company magazines--The Club News, The 
Spirit and The Ambassador--to name three which are 
good sources of information. 

I. Architectural and Equipment Plans 

The largest number of surviving plans and drawings 
are in the G&W On-site Collection, although those in a 
private collection belonging to descendants of David 
Roberts, Sr. are generally of an earlier date. Some, 
but not all of the latter, have been copied by Ontario 
Archives as collection C-32, accession 11597. 

In the Roberts Family Collection drawings for G&W 
buildings are easily confused with others depicting 
similar buildings having no proven connection to G&W, 
notably those catalogued by Ontario Archives as #11 
through #20 and #24. While the latter may have been 
early proposals for G&W, it is also possible that they 
were schemes for some other client. 
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1. David Roberts [Sr.], Toronto, Plan and section [of 
mill-distillery], 1845. Scale f inch to 1 foot. 
Ink and wash on paper (Roberts Family Collection) 

David Roberts [Sr.], Engineer, Toronto, Detail of 
cast iron column base and capital, 22 Mar. 1859. 
Full size. Ink and pencil on paper. (Roberts 
Family Collection) 

[David Roberts, Sr?], Sketch plan for mill and 
distillery, n.d. Scale 8 feet to 1 inch. Verso: 
plan and elevation. Pencil on paper. n.d. (Roberts 
Family Collection) 

[David Roberts, Sr?], Sketch plan of distillery, 
n.d. Pencil on paper. n.d. (Roberts Family 
Collection) 

[David Roberts, Sr.], Proposed steam mill and 
distillery, Toronto [Bldgs. #2-51, [c1858] Ground, 
first and second floor plans. Scale 8 feet to one 
inch. Watermark '1857.' Annotated ''This is the 
Exhibit 24 as referred to in the Examination by 
Mr. [Thomas] Gundry, DBR." (G&W, On-site) 

D[avid] Roberts, [Sr.], Architect and Engineer, 
Toronto, April 1863. End and side elevations with 
sections and floor plan [for Malt House, Bldgs. 
#35-361. [Scale 8 feet to one inch]. Signed by 
Thomas Storm as contractor. Ink and wash on paper. 
(OA, C-32, acc. 11597, # 21, 21-a; see p. 177) 

D[avid] Roberts, [Sr.], Architect and Engineer, 
Toronto, April 1863. End and side elevations with 
sections [for Malt House, Bldgs. #35-361; scale 4 
feet to one inch. Ground plan; scale 8 feet to one 
inch. Signed by Thomas Storm as contractor. Ink on 
paper mounted on linen. (OA, C-32, acc. 11597, 
#22; see illustration p. 179) 

D[avid] Roberts, [Sr.], Architect and Engineer, 
Toronto, April 1863. Drawing no. 6. Plan of 
details for caps, bases, side-plates and columns 
[for Malt House, Bldgs. #35-361. Scale 2 inches 
to 1 foot. Signed by Thomas Storm as contractor. 
Ink and wash on paper. (OA, C-32, acc. 11597, #26 
and #26-a) 

[David Roberts, Sr.], End elevation and section; 
side elevation and section [for an unexecuted 
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storehouse closely resembling the Malt House], 
n.d. Scale 4 feet to the inch. Ink and wash on 
linen. (OA, C-32, acc. 11597, #23) 

[David Roberts, Sr.?], Office and coopers' shed 
[Bldgs. #28,  31-33], sections, c. 1863. Scale 8 
feet to the inch. (G&W On-site) 

D[avid] Roberts, [Sr.], Toronto, Cattle Shed, 
April 1864. (G&W On-site) 

Plan of Messrs. Gooderham & Worts Premises on 
Trinity Street, Toronto, c.1867. Ground floor 
plan. Scale 16 ft. to the inch. (G&W On-site) 

Plan similar to preceding except some additional 
equipment is shown and tables are included listing 
all equipment and giving dimensions as well as 
liquid and cubic volumes. (G&W On-site) 

Plan of Messrs. Gooderham & Worts Premises on 
Trinity Street, Toronto, c.1867. Second floor 
plan. Scale 16 ft. to the inch. (G&W On-site) 

Plan similar to preceding except some additional 
equipment is shown and tables are included listing 
all equipment and giving dimensions as well as 
liquid and cubic volumes. (G&W On-site) 

Plan of Messrs. Gooderham & Worts Premises on 
Trinity Street, Toronto, c.1867. Third floor plan. 
Scale 16 ft. to the inch. (G&W On-site) 

Plan of Messrs. Gooderham & Worts Premises on 
Trinity Street, Toronto, c.1867. Fourth floor 
plan. Scale 16 ft. to the inch. (G&W On-site) 

Plan of Messrs. Gooderham & Worts Premises on 
Trinity Street, Toronto, c.1867. Fifth floor plan 
showing equipment and giving liquid and cubic 
volumes. Scale 16 ft. to the inch. (G&W On-site) 

Grinding Mill Cyliners, c. 1867. Full section, 'as 
used by T.S.C. for grinding oven.' (G&W On-site) 

D[avid] Roberts, [Sr.], Architect and Engineer, 
Toronto, Plate and brackett (sic) details, 1869. 
Scale one-quarter full-size. Ink and wash on 
linen. (Roberts Family Collection) 
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. D[avid Roberts, Jr. architect, Toronto, December 
1869. Details of truss. Probably for rebuilding 
the distillery [Bldgs. #2-51 after the fire. Scale 
one inch to one foot. Ink and wash on paper. (OA, 
C-32, acc. 11597, #25-b, 25-c, 25-d. Other 
versions, unsigned and undated, of a nearly- 
identical drawing are found as #25 and 25-a) 

22. Fred. W. Wolf, architect, Chicago, Ill. East-west 
section through north end of Malt Kiln [Bldgs. 
#35-351, [c1877-841. Scale t inch to 1 foot. Wash 
on linen. Probably related to the raising of the 
kilns to their present height. (G&W On-site) 

23. Foundation plans for grain elevator for Messrs. 
Gooderham & Worts, Toronto, Probably 1860s-1870s. 
Scale one inch to 4 feet. Paper on linen backing. 
(G&W On-site) 

24. Stewart & Denison, architects, Toronto, Design for 
grain elevator for Messrs. Gooderham & Worts, July 
1881. Side and end elevations; longitudinal 
sections. Scale 1 inch to 8 feet. (G&W On-site) 

25. Stewart & Denison, architects, Toronto, Design for 
grain elevator for Messrs. Gooderham & Worts, July 
1881. Plans and sections. Scale 1 inch to 4 feet. 
(G&W On-site) 

26. Stewart & Denison, architects, Toronto, Design for 
grain elevator for Messrs. Gooderham & Worts, July 
1881. Longitudinal section. Scale 1 inch to 8 
feet. (G&W On-site) 

27. Stewart & Denison, architects, Toronto, Design for 
grain elevator for Messrs. Gooderham & Worts, July 
1881. Framing plan. Scale 1 inch to 8 feet. (G&W 
On-site) 

28. Section of Distillery, n.d. Signed and dated 20 
Jul. 1882 by W. Reddan as Excise officer-in- 
charge. (G&W On-site) 

29. Cross-section of distillery with new pipes 
pencilled in, [188-?I Watermarked '1885.' (G&W On- 
site) 

30. Sketch of piled foundations for building to be re- 
erected for Messrs. Gooderham & Worts, [188-?] 



Architectural and Equipment Plans 

Shows line of old building, roadway and new 
location. Scale one-half inch to one foot. (G&W 
On-site) 

31. D[avid] Roberts, [Jr.], Rack Storage Building 
[Bldg. #42], [c1889/90]. Front elevation. Scale 4 
ft. to 1 inch. Signed by A. Weller & Co. as 
contractor. (G&W On-site) 

32. D[avid] Roberts, [Jr.], Rack Storage Building 
[Bldg. #42], [c1889/90]. West-end elevation. Scale 
4 ft. to 1 inch. Signed by A. Weller & Co. as 
contractor. (G&W On-site) 

33. D[avid] Roberts, [Jr.], Rack Storage Building 
[Bldg. #42], [c1889/90]. Ground-floor plan. Scale 
4 ft. to 1 inch. Signed by A. Weller & Co. as 
contractor. (G&W On-site) 

34. D[avid] Roberts, [Jr.], Rack Storage Building 
[Bldg. #42], [c1889/90]. Section through A-B. 
Scale 4 ft. to 1 inch. Signed by A. Weller & Co. 
as contractor. (G&W On-site) 

35. D[avid] Roberts, [Jr.], Rack Storage Building 
[Bldg. #42], [c1889/90]. Section through C-D. 
Scale 4 ft. to 1 inch. Signed by A. Weller & Co. 
as contractor. (G&W On-site) 

36. D[avid] Roberts, [Jr.], Rack Storage Building 
[Bldg. #42], [c1889/90]. Rail and track plan. 
Scale 4 ft. to 1 inch. Signed by A. Weller & Co. 
as contractor. (G&W On-site) 

37. [David Roberts, Jr.] Twenty-nine drawings for 
buildings and structures for General Distilling 
Co. Ltd., north and south sides of Mill Street 
west of Trinity Street, 1902-03. Ink on linen. 
(G&W On-site) 

38. Molasses tank and pump. Three blueprints dated 24 
Mar. 1906 and later for pumps supplied by Blake- 
Knowles division of Worthington Pump & Machinery. 
Also correspondence from other suppliers of tanks 
and pumps. (G&W On-site) 

39. V.L. Gladman, Toronto, Case warehouse [Bldg. #74], 
c1927. Copies of plans are filed with application 
for building permit. (City of Toronto, Central 
Records, B.P. #95536, 1927) 
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40. T. Pringle & Sons, Montreal, Rack House [Bldg. 
#75], 7 Mar 1927. Copies of plans dated 7 Mar. 
1927 accompanied the application for a drainage 
permit (City of Toronto, Central Records, Permit 
#128247). A set of blueprints is filed with the 
application for a building permit (City of 
Toronto, Central Records, B.P. #95894) 

41. Four sectional drawings, for unidentified building 
at Eureka Distillery, Beauport, Quebec. Undated. 
Legends in French. With drawing for a painted sign 
on a fence along a railway, signed A. LaRochelle. 
(G&W On-site) 

J. Specifications 

[David Roberts, Sr.], Specifications of works to 
be done and materials to be provided in the 
erection of a steam mill and Distillery for 
Messrs. Gooderham & Worts, Toronto, [1858]. 10 
pages. (MTRL, Baldwin Room, S117, Wm. H. Pim 
Papers I) 

[Stewart & Denison, architects, Toronto] 
Specifications for a grain elevator for Messrs. 
Gooderham & Worts, Toronto, [July 18811. (G&W On- 
site) 

3. A.D. Margison Associates Ltd., Specification for 
Windmill to be erected at Parliament and Fleet 
Streets, 1953. Superstructure and landscaping. 
(G&W On-site) 

K. Municipal Assessment Records 

In the City of Toronto Archives are preserved the 
assessment rolls from 1834 to 1914; those for the 
period after 1914 are in the City of Toronto Central 
Records. The assessments are by street and are broken 
down building by building. Thus, new buildings or 
demolitions are signalled by additions or deletions on 
a year-to-year basis. For many buildings not noted in 
the newspapers as under construction the assessment 
rolls are the only reliable guide to dating. 



L. Drainase Permits 

Since 1888 the City of Toronto has required drainage 
permits as a preliminary step in the building process. 
They are a useful way to confirm when work on a project 
was actually begun. Also they often includes site plans 
and can lead more easily to the finding of the building 
permit and associated drawings. Drainage records are 
kept by street address in the City's Central Records. 

The following list is only a sampling, more complete 
for some decades than others, since time did not permit 
a full search for all permits related to Gooderham & 
Worts. 

1. #19459, 1 Dec. 1902, to General Distilling Co., 
for south side Mill Street between Trinity and 
Parliament 

2. #29863, 17 Aug. 1906, to General Distilling Co., 
for northwest corner of Trinity and Mill Streets 

3. #33094, 15 Jul. 1907, to General Distilling Co. 
Accompanied by a plan by Sproatt & Rolph, 
architects, for a tank house on the north side of 
Mill Street, 130 feet from Trinity Street, July 
12, 1907. Scale one eighth inch to one foot. 

4. #38696, 15 Apr. 1909, to Gooderham & Worts, for 90 
Mill Street 

5. #86045, 30 Jun. 1917, to British Acetones, 
(Gentle & Travis) 

6. #87541, 26 Jan. 1918, to British Acetones, (Robt. 
Jordan) 

7. #87557, 31 Jan 1918, to British Acetones, (Robt. 
Jordan) 

8. #87796, 4 Apr. 1918, to British Acetones, for two 
sinks on the ground floor, (Gentle & Travis, 
plumbers ) 

9. #89222, 11 Sept. 1918, to British Acetones, Mill 
Street, (Gentle & Travis) 

10. #89538, 18 Oct. 1918, to British Acetones, (J.A. 
Wickett Ltd. ) 
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11. #A-109623, 5 Feb. 1923, Gooderham & Worts, for 
rear 55 Trinity Street, (Robt. Jordan) 

12. #A-114914, 25 Jan. 1924, Gooderham & Worts (Robt. 
Jordan) 

13. #128247, 10 May 1927, Gooderham & Worts, (Sheppard 
& Abbott) Accompanied by a foundation plan and 
typical floor plan for Bldg. #75, Rack House "MI" 
7 Mar. 1927, T. Pringle & Son, engineers and 
architects, Montreal & Toronto, Scale eighth inch 
to one foot. 

14. #137894, 17 Dec. 1929, to Gooderham & Worts, south 
side of Mill Street 

15. # 141963, 2 May 1931, to Gooderham & Worts, for 41 
Mill Street (Wright Bros.) 

16. #12042, 16 Mar. 1942, to Gooderham & Worts, for 
Bldg. #4, (Purdy, Mansell) 

17. #B-15440, 6 Oct. 1943, to Gooderham & Worts 
(Purdy, Mansell) 

18. #B-15777, 6 Dec. 1943, to Gooderham & Worts, for 
east side Trinity Street between Mill and railway, 
(Purdy Mansell) 

M. Buildinq and Demolition Permits 

Building permits have been required since 1879 but 
counterfoils for only a few hundred permits issued 
before 1920 survive in the City's Archives. In most 
cases the estimated cost of the project is stated on 
the permit. Sometimes the architect's name is given 
also. There is, however, a fairly complete abstract of 
permits issued back to about 1900. Earlier records can 
be searched in the City Archives. Post-1930 records are 
kept in the Building Records Centre, 17th floor, East 
Tower, City Hall; those more recent than 1970 are in a 
computerized catalogue. Permits are also required for 
demolition; they are found in the same series as 
building permits. 

While applicants for a building permit had to submit 
their plans for approval, the City has retained only a 
small proportion of the plans submitted before the 
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1920s. They are filed in the City's Central Records 
under the year and number of the building permit. 

1. B.P. #loo, 21 Apr. 1888, for a galvanized iron 
elevator, Esplanade St. at the foot of Parliament. 
Est. cost $25,000. Architect not named. (CTA, RG 
13, Series C) 

2. B. P. #1986, 23 ~ul. 1895, for a one-storey brick 
fire-engine house, on the east side of Trinity 
Street. "No plans" noted on permit. Est. cost 
$1000. Architect not named. (CTA, RG 13, Series C) 

3. B.P. #156, 10 Apr. 1901, granted to General 
Distilling Co. for a five-storey brick distillery 
building and still, south side of Mill Street at 
corner of Parliament. Est. cost $30,000. David 
Roberts, Jr. architect. 

4. B.P. #625, 26 Nov. 1902 for buildings for General 
Distilling Co., Mill Street. David Roberts, Jr. 
architect. 

B.P. #3509, 19 Apr. 1906, for one-storey brick and 
stone coopers' shop and barrel shed, east side of 
Trinity street between Front and Mill. Est. cost 
$5,800. David Roberts, Jr. architect. 

B.P. #4239, 13 June 1906 for one-storey brick and 
stone storehouse, for the General Distilling Co.! 
Trinity Street near Mill. Est. cost $11,000. Davld 
Roberts, Jr. architect. 

B.P. #9168, 17 May 1907, for garage in cooperage 
shop yard, Trinity Street near Mill. Sproatt & 
Rolph, architects. 

B.P. #86624, 1926, for installation of [molasses?] 
tank 

Demolition permit #93064, 1926, for elevator at 
foot of Trinity Street 

10. B.P. #95536, 1927, for warehouse [Bldg. # 7 4 ] .  Est. 
cost $72,000. V.L. Gladman, archt. 

11. B.P. #98385, 1927, for warehouse [Bldg. #75] .  Est. 
cost $120,000. T. Pringle & Sons, archts. 
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B.P. #99470, 1927, for stack. Est. cost $1800. 

B.P. A-8381, 1928, to alter office building. Est. 
cost $6000. 

B.P. #33532, 1932, for addition to factory. Est. 
cost $900. 

Demolition permit #40911, 1934, for storage 
building 

B.P. #70773, 1941, for molasses tank. Est. cost 
$6000. 

B.P. #74525, 1942, for interior alterations. Est. 
cost $2000. 

B.P. #74599, 1942, for alterations to building. 
Est cost $5000. 

B.P. #75914, 1942, for alterations to roof of 
boiler room. Est. cost $750. 

B.P. 76280, 
$1000. 

1942, for coal hopper. Est. cost 

B.P. #11530, 1951, for alterations to building. 
Est. cost $4000. 

B.P. #12578, 1951, for alterations to office. Est. 
cost $36,700. Mathers & Haldenby, architects. 

B.P. #29388, 1954, for alterations to storage 
building; installation of fire escape. 

N. Incorporation and Board Records 

1. Certificate of Dissolution of Partnership between 
William Gooderham and James G. Worts, Toronto, 4 
Feb. 1882. Certifies a partnership was carried on 
as Gooderham & Worts up to William Gooderhamfs 
death on 20 August 1881. (OA, RG 55, York County 
Partnership #2565) 

2. Declaration of Partnership between J.G. Worts and 
George Gooderham, in business as Gooderham & 
Worts. Toronto, 4 Feb. 1882. Partnership has 
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existed since 22 August 1881. (OA, RG 55, York 
County Partnership #2567) 

3. Agreement as to Gooderham & Worts Limited, 1 Aug. 
1882 between George Gooderham and the Trustees and 
Cestiusque Trustent under the Will of the late 
James Gooderham Worts. This twenty-six page 
agreement created a limited company in place of a 
partnership. Attached to it were two schedules 
containing much valuable information; also a site 
plan by Unwin, Browne & Sankey, 8 Nov. 1882. See 
Appendix C, pp. 113-130, below for an outline of 
the schedules and partial transcription. (HW 
Legal-Secretarial) 

The agreement is available only as a 
photocopy. On the cover is noted in pencil, 
"This is a copy of historical records loaned 
to Mr. Hatch by Mrs. Drope through Mr. 
Carmichael who gave these to Mr. Hatch. Aug. 
30/67." Other photocopies are found in the 
Hiram Walker Archives (Boxes 11, 12) and the 
Gooderham & Worts On-site Collection. The 
original has not been located. 

4. Letters Patent, Gooderham and Worts (Limited), 24 
Nov. 1882 (HW Legal-Secretarial) 

5. Supplementary letters patent, for Gooderham & 
Worts, Limited, 28 Dec. 1923, changing name of the 
company to "The Old Wind Mill, Limited." (HW 
Legal-Secretarial) 

6. Letters Patent. Incorporating Gooderham & Worts 
Limited under the Canada Companies Act on petition 
of Wm. George Gooderham, George Horace Gooderham, 
Wm. Hargraft Gooderham, Albert Edward Gooderham 
the younger, Albert Edward Gooderham and Melville 
Ross Gooderham, all of Toronto, 29 Dec. 1923. (HW 
Legal-Secretarial; another copy is in G&W On-site) 

7. Agreement, Edward D. Gooderham and Gooderham & 
Worts Ltd., Dec. 1923. Copy. (G&W On-site) 

8. Transfer, The Old Windmill Limited and Gooderham & 
Worts Ltd., Dec. 1923. Copy. (G&W On-site) 

9. Conveyance, The Old Windmill Limited to Gooderham 
& Worts Ltd., Dec. 1923. Two copies. (G&W On-site) 
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10. Warehouse receipt, Gooderham & Worts Limited, Dec. 
1923. Copy. (G&W On-site) 

11. Copy of Transfer, Gooderham & Worts Limited to 
Gooderham & Worts Ltd., Dec. 1923 (G&W On-site) 

12. Supplemementary letters patent, Gooderham & Worts 
Limited, 11 Aug. 1926. (HW Legal-Secretarial; 
another copy is in G&W On-site) 

13. Supplementary letters patent, Gooderham & Worts 
Limited, 8 Feb. 1939 (HW Legal-Secretarial) 

14. Supplementary letters patent, Gooderham & Worts 
Limited, 19 Dec. 1962 (HW Legal-Secretarial) 

15. Certificate of continuance, Gooderham & Worts 
Limited, 24 Jan. 1979 (HW Legal-Secretarial) 

16. Certificate, dissolving Gooderham & Worts Limited 
under the Canada Business Corporations Act, 6 June 
1988 (HW Legal-Secretarial) 

17. Minute Book, Gooderham & Worts Limited (Dominion 
of Canada Corporation), Dec. 1923 - Jan. 1934 (HW 
Legal-Secretarial) 

18. Provincial Secretary's File on Gooderham & Worts, 
Contains names and addresses of officers and 
directors from 1925 to 1971; dates of last annual 
general meeting; correspondence re license in 
mortmain granted by Order-in-Council, 10 July 
1925, and license renewals. As a Dominion company 
G&W needed a license to hold property in Ontario. 
(OA, RG 55, Series 4, Box 108, file C 25056) 

19. Petition to Secretary of State, 9 Aug. 1926, to 
amend company's capitalization from 20,000 shares 
P.V. $1.00 to 200,000 shares N.P.V. (G&W On-site) 

20. Agreement, 15 Nov. 1927, between Hiram Walker's 
Limited and the depositing shareholders of 
Gooderham & Worts Limited to exchange shares on a 
one-for-one basis. Hiram Walker's Limited will 
change its name to Hiram Walker-Gooderham & Worts 
Ltd. Four printed copies (G&W On-site) 

21. Share Certificate Registers, Gooderham & Worts 
Limited, 1924 to present (HW Legal-Secretarial) 
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22. Annual Reports, Gooderham & Worts Limited, 1924 to 
present (HW Legal-Secretarial) 

23. Applications for stock, 10 Jan. 1924 (G&W On-site) 

24. Duplicate list of shareholders, 1925 (G&W On-site) 

25. Copy of list of shareholders, 10.2.1925 (G&W On- 
site) 

26. Certificate of Company Secretary, Nov. 1925, as to 
incorporation of G&W (G&W On-site) 

27. List of shareholders, 12.11.25 (G&W On-site) 

28. Applications for stock, c. 1925 (G&W On-site) 

29. List of shareholders, 31 Dec. 1925 - 3 May 1926 
(G&W On-Site) 

30. List of shareholders, 28 Aug. 1926 (G&W On-site) 

31. List of stockholders, 14 Jul. 1926 (G&W On-site) 

32. Certified list of stock, held by Midland Bank, 
London, England, on 31 Aug. 1928 (G&W On-site) 

33. Letter, 25 Apr. 1924, from Duncan MacLeod of 
Bulloch, Lade & Co., Glasgow, (a Director of G&W 
Ltd.), waiving his right to notice of Board 
meetings (G&W On-site) 

34. Minutes, first annual meeting of shareholders of 
Gooderham & Worts Ltd., 2 Mar. 1925 (G&W On-site) 

35. Powers of attorney and proxies, second annual G&W 
shareholders meeting, 2 Nov. 1925 (G&W On-site) 

36. Resolution, passed at a meeting of Board of 
Directors, 6 Nov. 1925, appointing Toronto General 
Trusts as transfer agent. Certified copy. (G&W On- 
site) 

37. Minute, passed at meeting of Board of Directors, 
11 Dec. 1925, appointing Toronto General Trust 
Corp. as disbursing agent for dividends (G&W On- 
site) 
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38. Extract from minutes, meeting of Board of 
Directors, 15 Apr. 1926, re payment of dividend in 
June 1926 (G&W On-site) 

39. Memorial, to Harry Clifford Hatch, (born 1884; 
died May 8, 1946) adopted 27 May 1946, by the 
Board of Directors of HW-G&W Ltd. Printed; with 
portrait. (G&W On-site) 

3. Contracts, Leases and Leqal Documents 

NOTE: ALL ITEMS BELOW ARE IN G&W ON-SITE COLLECTION 
UNLESS CREDITED ELSEWHERE. 

1. Agreement, 30 Jun. 1926, with Toronto Terminal 
Railway Company and Toronto Harbour Commission re 
sale of land. Plan attached. 

2. Agreement, 1 Jan. 1931, between Distillers Pool 
and Dominion Factors Ltd. 

3. Agreement, Sept. 1931, with Lanson PBre et Fils 
covering supply of 600,000 quarts of champagne at 
a cost of $200,000 

4. Lease, 1 Apr. 1931, with Dominion Carbonic 
covering building and lands on south side of Mill 
Street 

5. Agreement, 4 Aug. 1932, with City of Toronto re 
molasses pipeline 

6. Agreement, 11 Aug. 1932, with Bennett & Wright 
Ltd. covering the installation of the molasses 
pipeline from the dock to the tank 

7. Agreement, 12 Dec. 1932, between Consolidated 
Distillers Ltd., Gooderham & Worts Ltd. and Hiram 
Walker & Sons Ltd. ("the Canadian companies") and 
Bernard E. Mackey and Edward L. Flanigan ("the 
exporters") 

8. Lease, 31 Oct. 1934, for two years with United 
Coal & Coke 

9. Release of liability, 22 Mar. 1935, to Col. Malvin 
I. Haas of Cincinnati, Ohio. 



Contracts, Leases and Legal Documents 

Agreement, 11 Jul. 1935, with Celanese Company of 
America for the manufacturing of collafuse. 

Agreement, 14 Aug. 1935, with American Can Company 
covering closing-machine lease 

Agreement, 3 Dec. 1935, with Canadian National 
Railways and Liquid Carbonic Cdn. Corp. Ltd. re 
joint use of siding 

Consent, 16 May 1944, for Bell Canada to install 
an underground conduit through G&W's property to 
Victory Soya Mills. 

Licenses, for bonding warehouses, 1942-46 

Lease, 1 Mar. 1947 for five years, on room 801, 
Lindsay Building, Winnipeg 

Agreement, 30 Dec. 1948, with Neilson Lang as 
company salesman 

Contract, with Dow Chemical of Canada Limited for 
purchase of ethylene glycol, Jan. 1948 - Dec. 1952 
Acknowledgement, 29 Jun. 1950, of storage for the 
account of the wine committee of France, without 
risk to G&W 

Agreement, 31 Jan. 1951, with Consolidated 
Warehouse Corp. for in-bond and free storage in 
Montreal 

Agreement, 16 Jul. 1951, with Ashley & Crippen 
covering purchase of print of a film, 'Imperial 
Habsburg Art Treasures,' then showing at Toronto 
Art Gallery 

Contract, 31 Dec. 1952, with Canadian General 
Transit Co. Ltd. covering tank cars CGTX 9522, 
9552, 8252. On 1 Oct. 1953 increased to eight cars 
and extended to 31 Dec. 1955. 

General Term bond, effective 1 Sept. 1952. 
Covering importations into the United States 

General Term Bond, 25 Jun. 1954. Covering 
importation into the United States of merchandise 



Contracts, Leases and Legal Documents 

of Hiram Walker & Sons Inc. and its affiliated 
companies listed on Customs form 7595 

General Term Bond, 1955. Covering importations 
into the United States 

Lease, 1 May 1952, for three years of offices in 
Canada Cement Building, Montreal 

Contracts, with Cloke Construction and others for 
building half-scale windmill replica, 1953-54 (HW 
Archives, Box 12, 'G&W History') 

Agreement, 19 Mar. 1954, with Radio Oil Refineries 
re the canning of G&W antifreeze in Winnipeg, Man. 
until 1 Dec. 1954 

Agreement, 19 Mar. 1954, with Radio Oil Refineries 
re the canning of G&W antifreeze in Edmonton, 
Alta. until Dec. 1954. 

Contract, with Dow Chemical of Canada Limited re 
purchase of ethylene glycol, 1954 

Contract, 14 Oct. 1954, with Commercial Alcohols 
Limited, Gatineau, Que., covering requirements to 
April 1955 

Warranty, 24 May 1955, covering Addressograph, 
Series 26, purchased from Addressograph-Multigraph 
of Canada. 

Amendment, 19 Dec. 1955, re promotional allowance 
under contract with Wray & Nephew, 20 Sept. 1954. 

Bond #4343, Building Products Ltd., Jan. 1956, 
covering Cased Goods Warehouse (Bldg. #74) for 
twenty years. 

Agreement, 1946, with Ontario Liquor Control Board 
for its temporary occupation of Bldg. #46. 

Agreement, 19 Aug. 1957, with City of Toronto re 
construction and maintenance of a 6" underground 
pipeline on the east side of Parliament Street. 

Agreement, 25 Jun. 1959, with City of Toronto re 
extension of existing 10" underground pipeline on 
east side of Queen's Quay to connect with terminal 
on Queen Elizabeth Docks 



Contracts, Leases and Legal Documents 

37. Petition, n.d., to Supreme Court of Ontario asking 
F.S. Harris be commissioned to take affadavits and 
sign Customs B13 forms 

P. Correspondence 

1. With Lanman & Kemp, New York City, 3 Jan. 1864 to 
21 Oct. 1879. 470 pces. (MTRL, Baldwin Room, S-24) 
Lanman & Kemp operated from 1858 to 1880 as 
manufacturers of patent medicines sold under names 
like Murray & Lanman's Florida Water, Bristol's 
Sarsaparilla and Kemp's Worm Plasters. In 1901 its 
successors merged with Barclay & Co. As recently 
as 1975 Barclay & Co. had a Lanman & Kemp division 
and one may still exist today. During the 1860s 
and 1870s Gooderham & Worts supplied Lanman & Kemp 
with raw alcohol in bulk. Most letters here are 
routine, advising on shipments and dealing with 
accounts. Besides providing a good sampling of 
letterheads, they show who was handling the firm's 
correspondence, including J.W. Beatty, W. Doran, 
Thomas Drysdale, H.J. Gooderham, William 
Gooderham, Jr., and James G. Worts, Jr . 

2. With Sir John A. Macdonald, 1869-1888 (NAC, MG 26) 
The finding aid to incoming correspondence lists 
about a dozen letters from William Gooderham and 
G&W, dealing mostly with customs duties and claims 
of the company and government against one another. 
It does not note letters written by third parties 
mentioning G&W inter alia. An example was found 
inadvertently: W.H. Beatty to Macdonald, 14 April 
1888 (NAC, MG 26, pp 58801-58806), in which Beatty 
asks that the CPR be prevented from establishing a 
shunting yard on the former Worts property at the 
northeast corner of Trinity and Mill Streets, as 
it would cut off G&W from the city. 

With City of Toronto. The Council minutes and 
papers for the 19th-century found in the City of 
Toronto Archives are indexed by subject and 
correspondent. Theere are scattered references to 
letters from G&W on matters like street lighting 
and the state of the streets. Indexed separately 
are several references to William Gooderham as an 
alderman for St. Lawrence Ward in the mid-1850s. 



Correspondence 

4. With Toronto Harbour Commissioners. G&W had 
extensive correspondence with the Commissioners 
and Harbour Master on a variety of subjects, 
notably: 

a. Harbourhead wall and Parliament Street dock, 
1916-55. (THCA, RG 3/3, box 329, folder 6; file on 
same subject found in G&W On-site Collection.) 

b. Expropriation of G&W properties to straighten 
the Don River, 1917-1920. (THCA, RG 3/3, box 71, 
folder 10) 

c. Toronto Viaduct, 1926-27. (THCA, RG 3/3, box 
325, folders 5-6; file on same subject found in 
G&W On-site Collection) 

d. Pipelines across land owned by THC, 1932-40, 
(THCA, RG 3/3, box 220, folder 7; file on same 
subject found in G&W On-site Collection.) 

e. Importation of molasses, 1938-42. (THCA, RG 
2, series 3, box 1, folder 23) 

f. Relocation of Parliament Street, construction 
of a 6" pipeline and extension of n existing 10" 
molasses pipeline, 1959, 1982-84. (G&W On-site) 

g. Sale of portion of G&W dock and dismantling 
of Windmill, 1961-81. (G&W On-site) 

In addition, other records of the Harbour Trust 
and its successor, the Toronto Harbour Commission, 
may contain information on ships carrying goods to 
and from Gooderham & Worts: 

h. Harbour Dues, 1849-93 (THCA, RG 2, series 4) 

i. Manifest Books, 1858-1937 (THCA, RG 2, 
series 5) 

5. O.D. Johnston Files. On retiring as president of 
G&W in 1960, Johnston left several correspondence 
files to which he attached some significance or 
wanted kept for other reasons: 

-Alcohol from potatoes 
-Chemical production and marketing studies 
-Chemicals 
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-National Chemergic Committee, 1940-45 
-Ethylene Glycol 
-Arthur D. Little, reports, bulletins and 

correspondence on the chemical industry 
-Rubber 
-M.A. Wingard & Co. Ltd., England, agents for Hot 

Shot alcohol antifreeze, re its future in 
competition with glycol. 

-Wages, 1956 
-Group Life and Annuity Insurance 
-Prospective Businesses 
-Report on the Manufacture and Cost of Production, 

from Refinery Gases of Ethyl Alcohol, 
Ethelene Glycol and Acetone. Prepared by J.T. 
Donald & Co., Montreal, 25 Mar. 1941 

-Plant Rearrangement, 1940, (pump from Peoria) 
-Plant rearrangement, 1940, (water still) 
-Plant Rearrangement, 1941, (acid tank) 
-Plant Rearrangement, 1941, (new still) 
-Electrical Plant Rearrangement, 1941 
-Boiler, 1941 
-Dryer, 1942 
-Plant Equipment Expansion, 1943, (grain drier) 
-Alterations to Cannery, Bldgs. #58-59, 1947 
-Flame Arresters for Distillery Vents 
-New Excise Office, Bldg. #28 (A.F.E. 140) 
-New stainless-steel, dried-grains recovering 

screen, (A.F.E. 154) 
-Coopersf Shop, Coopers' Crest and Millstone 

Monument, Trinity Street (A.F.E. 161) 

6. Re Water pipeline, 1915 

7. Re Howell Warehouses, sale (1940) and repurchase 
(1951) of Bldgs. #43 and #44, north side of Mill 
Street. Copy of plan by Speight, Van Nostrand, 
Ward & Anderson, 14 May 1940, attached. (G&W On- 
site) 

8. Re repurchase, s.e. corner of Mill and Parliament 
streets from C.P.R., 1945-46. (G&W On-site) 

9. Re litigation, Four Roses brand, July-December 
1945 

10. Re lease and renewals, 1948-55, offices in Canada 
Cement Building, Montreal (G&W On-site) 

11. Re reinsurance, on consignment goods held by 
Marshall Wells branches, December 1956 
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12. Re claim from fire at 53-55 Mill Street, March 5, 
1982. (G&W On-site) 

13. Re Toronto Plant, relocation and redevelopment 
studies, 1974-1981. (G&W On-site) 

Q. Financial Records 

NOTE: ALL ITEMS BELOW ARE IN THE G&W ON-SITE COLLECTION 
UNLESS CREDITED ELSEWHERE. 

1. Invoice, 14 Mar. 1837. William Gooderham, Wind 
Mills, City of Toronto, to Honbl. William Allan 
for purchases in 1836 and 1837. Signed on behalf 
of William Gooderham by T. Smith. (MTRL, Baldwin 
Room, S-123, William Allan Papers, Box 3, Misc.) 

2. Balance sheet, 31 Dec. 1924, prepared by Edwards, 
Morgan & Co., Chartered Accountants. 7 copies 

3. Financial statement, 31 Aug. 1925, prepared by 
Edwards, Morgan & Co., Chartered Accountants. 
Twelve copies 

4. Financial statements, 1924, 1925 (8. mos), 1933 
and 1934 

5. Assessment, City of Toronto, 1926 for 1927 taxes 

6. Ledgers, 1927-42 and 1945-50, recording value of 
shipments from suppliers represented by G&W 

7. Statement, or return of affairs, at 31 Dec. 1929 

8. Annual returns, 1925-30, to Secretary of State 
under the Companies Act 

9. Bank Account, Royal Bank of Canada, New York 

10. Application, 10 Apr. 1927, for $250,000 credit at 
Bank of Toronto; with related correspondence 

11. Demand note, late 1920s, for $281,877 from Bank of 
Toronto 

12. Dominion of Canada War Loan Bonds, Apr. 21, 1930 
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13. Documents, 1924-28, re settlement of sales taxes 
due 

14. Appraisal Report of Buildings, Machinery and 
General Equipment, 1 Jun. 1932, by Sterling 
Appraisal Co. Ltd., Toronto & Montreal. 
Vol. 1 (Summary); vol. 2 (Bldgs. 1 through 44); 
vol. 3 (Bldgs. 44 through 75 and yard). 

15. Remittance accounts, 1940. (HW Basement storage) 

16. Journal vouchers (eight cartons), 1960s (HW 
Basement storage) 

R. Operatinq Records 

NOTE: ALL ITEMS BELOW ARE IN THE G&W ON-SITE COLLECTION 
UNLESS CREDITED ELSEWHERE. 

1. Notebook, 1886-1907. Appears to have been kept by 
one of the head carpenters 

2. Time Book, No. 11 Bottling Cellar, covering period 
from April-October, 1910 

3. Excise Work notebook, 29 Jun. 1910 

4. Ponies and Day Yeasts Record Book, 1910-12 

5. Distillers' Notice Books, 1922 

6. Fourteen Distillers Notice Books, 1924-1940. Some 
have 'K 35 Inland Revenue' on cover, others 'T 234 
Excise. ' 

7. Formulae, c. 1925, for concentrated 'Prune Juice' 
#8 and #lo; also 1000 gallons of Export #1 Rye and 
#2 Bourbon 

Three distiller's registers of fermentation, late 
1920s. 

9. Fifteen distiller's notebooks, late 1920s. Some 
can be identified as belonging to Burris Crump. 

10. Stock of whiskey at James & George Stodart Ltd., 2 
Apr. 1931 
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11. Record notebooks, 1935, for production tests 

12. Notebooks, 1939, recording time worked by hourly- 
rated employees 

13. Laboratory yeasting record, 1941-42 (HW Archives. 
Box 12A) 

14. Yeast propagating experiments, 1941, with High 
Test molasses, 1941; Corn reports, 1953-57. (HW 
Archives, Box 12A) 

15. Blending instructions, 27 Apr. 1949, for first 
bottling operation. 

16. Notebook, n.d., for laboratory tests 

S. Personnel Records 

NOTE: ALL ITEMS BELOW ARE IN THE G&W ON-SITE COLLECTION 
UNLESS CREDITED ELSEWHERE. 

Return of employees, to City of Toronto, 10.2.25. 

Payroll lists, 1929, 1942-43 

Salary scale, early 1930s. Showing across-the- 
board cuts in salaries and wages. 

Retirement Annuity and Group Life Insurance Plans, 
for employees of Hiram Walker-Gooderham & Worts 
Ltd., in Canada, effective Jan. 1, 1939. Booklet. 
With a covering letter from Herb C. Hatch. 

Employees' Sick-benefit society, 1942-48. Record 
book. (HW Archives, shelved items) 

Long-service Club dinners, 1948-1986. File. (HW 
Archives, Box 12A) 

Oswald D. Johnston, biographical materials. 
Johnston was president of G&W from 1947-1960. (HW 
Archives, Box 12) 

Personnel, 1947-1960, list with file of related 
correspondence. 



Personnel Records 

9. Declarations, 30 Sept. 1947, by George France and 
R. Brimbecorn re France's service towards an 
annuity. 

10. Declarations, 12 May 1948, by N. Bailey and R. 
Brimbecorn re Bailey's service towards an annuity. 

11. Release of employees, 1957, due to plant shutdown. 
File. 

12. Salary authorization forms, 1960-1965 

13. Salary authorization forms, 1966-1979 

14. Salaries, 1962-1974. File. 

15. Operating engineers' contracts, 1972-1973 

16. Information file, on collective agreements with 
other companies in beverage industry. 

T. Marketinq, Advertisinq and Public Relations 

NOTE: ALL ITEMS BELOW ARE IN THE G&W ON-SITE COLLECTION 
UNLESS CREDITED ELSEWHERE. 

Price lists, 1885-1918. Scrapbook format. (HW 
Archives, shelved items) 

Price Lists, 1885-1935. For various markets. A 
combination of originals and photocopies. Approx. 
30 items. (HW Archives Box 12) 

Press clippings, 1917, re mail-order prices for 
beer and whiskey 

Product Sales Record Books, 1927 - c.1940, late 
1940s 

Tear sheets, advertising proof sheets, 1915-33. 
Approx. 30 items. (HW Archives, Box 1) 

6. A.B.C. of Mixing Cocktails. Small 52-page book, 
cover embossed "Compliments of Gooderham & Worts, 
Toronto." Title page refers to G&W as 'Distillers 
for nearly a century,' dating item to late 1920s. 
(HW Archives, Box 12; copies of later editions of 
this item are in G&W On-site Collection) 
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Scrapbook for G&W baseball teams and players, c. 
1935. The G&W "Grads" were the Toronto amateur 
baseball champions of 1934; Harry Sniderman was a 
star player. This album may have belonged to him. 

8. Copyright 87, Rd. #34966 issued to 0.0. Kaestner 
and R.D. Croft covering a published literary work, 
Sept. 14, 1935. "Something Different Hot Shot 
Antifreeze Alcohol." Attached is a printed table 
listing the radiator capacities of more than a 
hundred vehicles on the Canadian market. 

9. Proof sheets, 1941, for print advertisements for 
G&W and William Penn brands in U.S. markets. 

10. Proof sheets, 1942-44, for newspaper, trade paper 
and outdoor advertising for Five Star and William 
Penn brands in U.S. markets. Cover embossed: 'G&W 
National Advertising, Vol. 1.' 

11. Proof sheets, early 1950s. For advertising in U.S. 
markets. 

12. Proof sheets, 1969, for newspapers, trade papers 
and outdoor for William Penn brand in U.S. Cover 
embossed: 'G&W National Advertising, Vol. 2.' 

13. Report concerning labels, Thiel Detective Service 
Co., 18 Jul. 1925 

14. Approved Labels, 1927-37. Scrapbook format. (HW 
Archives, shelved items) 

15. Approved Labels, 1948-56, for G&W and affiliated 
companies. Scrapbook format. 

16. Approved Labels, 1967-76. Scrapbook format. (HW 
Archives, shelved items) 

17. Newspaper clippings, 1967-84. Approx. 50 items. 
(HW Archives, Box 12) 

18. Brand deletions, 1974. Bulletin advising 
withdrawal of certain brands from the U.S. market, 
with samples of labels (HW Archives, Box 12) 

19. Gooderham & Worts Replica Windmill. Clippings 
related to construction of windmill in 1953-54 and 
its demolition in 1960. Correspondence and guest 
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lists related to opening ceremonies, 9 Apr. 1954 
(HW Archives, Box 12, 'Windmill' and 'Trinity 
Street' files) 

Fourth Annual G&W - Canadian Legion National 
Curling Championships, Geo. R. Pearkes, V.C., 
Branch, Summerside, P.E.I., 1960. Program and 
menus. (HW Archives, Box 8) 

Fifth Annual G&W - Canadian Legion National 
Curling Championships, Trail, B.C., 14-17 Mar. 
1961. Four copies of advertising poster. 

G&W - Canadian Legion National Curling 
Championships. Hints on how to organize at the 
branch level. Small-card format. Several copies. 
Fifth Annual G&W Lawn Bowling Championshiops, 
Boulevard Club, Toronto, Aug. 24-26, 1959. 
Program. 

Christmas cards, c1945-50. Two cards reproducing 
paintings by Rowley Murphy based on research by 
C.H.J. Snider; two from paintings by H. Oswald 
Stacey; one lino cut of the Cooper Shop renovated 
as a lounge. (HW Archives, Box 12) 

Christmas card, c. 1960. On cover is coloured 
photograph, 'Winter Morn,' taken near Gooderham, 
Ontario. Caption tells how the village came to be 
named. 

Guest Book, for the Hospitality Room at the 
distillery, 1948-58. Covers missing. 

G&W 150th Anniversary reception, 26 May 1982. 
File. 

U. Awards, Citations and Addresses 

NOTE: ALL ITEMS BELOW ARE IN THE G&W ON-SITE COLLECTION 
UNLESS CREDITED ELSEWHERE. 

1. Expression of sympathy, to Messieurs Oooderham and 
Worts, [1869]. Ink on paper. Framed. Inscribed 
following destruction by fire of G&Wrs premises; 
signed by the Mayor of Toronto and approximately 
75 prominent citizens. (HW Archives) 



Awards, Citations and Addresses 

Certificate of Gold Medal, awarded to G&W at the 
1878 Universal Exhibition, Paris, 21 Oct. 1878. 
Competing in Group 7, Class 75. Framed. 

Gold Medal Diploma, awarded to G&W at the 1885 
Universal Antwerp Exposition, 14 Sept. 1885. 
Competing in Group 6, Class 69. Framed 

Certificate, to accompany presentation of a 
commemorative medal at the Colonial and Indian 
Exhibition, London, 1886. Framed. 

. Letter, 4 Jul. 1939, from R. Chrystal Irving, to 
G&Wrs Winnipeg agents, reporting that Lanson's 
Champagne and Johnston's Sauterne (for which G&W 
was Canadian agent) were served to Their Majesties 
on May 24 at Government House. Ms. Irving was 
secretary to the Lieutenant Governor of Manitoba. 
Framed. 

V. Records of Affiliated Companies 

NOTE: ALL ITEMS BELOW ARE IN G&W ON-SITE COLLECTION 
UNLESS CREDITED ELSEWHERE. 

1. Correspondence and drawings, 1927, from Canadian 
General Electric Co. and Dominion Bridge re 
construction of CKGW transmitter at Bowmanville. 
Founded in 1927 by G&W and known as 'Canada's 
Cheerio Station,' CKGW was associated with the NBC 
and Trans-Canada Broadcasting Co. networks. It 
operated until 1948. 

2. Declaration of partnership, in Trans Canada 
Broadcasting Company, filed 31 May 1928 

3. Declarations of partnership and trust, leases etc. 
re Trans Canada Broadcasting Co., 1928. Approx. 12 
photocopied items. (HW Archives, Box 12) 

4. CKGW Expenses, 1929-30; program lists for 1930; 
testimonials from listeners. Several files. 

5. Record of Proceedings, 1944. In the Privy Council 
on Appeal from the Court of Appeal for Ontario 
between Gooderham & Worts, Limited, appellant, and 
the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation, respondent, 
re CKGW radio station. 



Records of Affiliated Companies 

6. Disposal of CKGW Assets, 1948. File 

7. Bill of sale, Sept. 4, 1931, to James Barclay & 
Co. from F.C. Clarkson, trustee in bankruptcy, of 
estate of Peninsular Distilling Company. 

8. Incorporation of Consolidated Alcohols, 1957. A 
package of related papers. Consolidated Alcohols 
Ltd. was the result of a merger of G&Wfs 
industrial-alcohol business with Canadian 
Industrial Alcohols, owned by Corby's. 

9. Consolidated Alcohols, salary-authorization forms, 
1957-70. 

10. Seppelts. Photograph album of facilities where 
Chateau Tanunda brandy and Australian wines were 
made. In 1935 G&W had the agency for Seppelts 
products for all Canada except British Columbia. 


